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Financial Highlights
MBREE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194F

$'000 $'000

THERT FAT

(Re-presented)

(FeE=75)
Revenue (from continuing operations) WA CREFHELEE ) 79,525 75,259 6%

Profit/(loss) from operations ERN,(EER)

(from continuing operations) (REFBBELEER) 15,184 (19,809) 177%

Profit/(loss) before non-controlling

interests JEIRRAE RS AR F, (E5IE) 16,542 (47,873) 135%
Non-controlling interests FEE IR A 1,489 - N/A i A

Profit/(loss) attributable to

equity shareholders of RA RS R R IES

the Company wRL(E8) 15053 ¢ 47873 131%
Earnings/(loss) per share BREFN(FH8)

(from continuing and (REBFELER

discontinuing operations) ERIEREEE)
Basic (HK$) EARCETT) 0.006 (0.020) 130%
Diluted (HK$) a8 0.006 (0.020) 130%

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the
"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Year").

The financial year of 2020 is an extraordinary and challenging year for
our group. Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19, it has brought about
additional uncertainties in BOPP film market. The pandemic had an
impact on production management as well as expansion of new market.
Our Board actively engaged more customers during first quarter in 2020
when crude oil price collapsed, which contributed considerable profit
to the Group. After cost of raw material returned to regular level, profit
showed downward trend and we estimated it would soon turn loss with
cost further rising. We took time to reassess this existing project and
finally decided to dispose our factory in Qingdao that mainly focused on
manufacturing and sales of BOPP films. The disposal overall improved the
Group's asset turnover rate and generated additional cash inflow.

2021 is the first year of the “Fourteenth Five-Year” Plan. The Chinese
government will persistently promote high-quality development and
focus on deepening supply-side structural reforms. In order to continue
our business development, we will allocate our cash and resources in
products or potential trials. We are now researching different potential
projects to strengthen our existing business and shall continue to capture
market opportunities. Meanwhile, we aim at expanding our network of
production and develop a diversified business mainly in Huaihai district,
so as to achieve sustainable business growth for the Group in the future.
We are currently engaging with several local developers and factories in
Jiangsu Province to discuss possibilities of potential cooperations.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thankfulness
and appreciation to my fellow Directors, management team and all the
staff members of the Group for their dedications and hard work, which
contributed to high-quality development of the Group’s business. | would
also like to express our sincere gratitude to all the Shareholders and
customers, suppliers, and business partners for their continuous supports
and persistent trust to the Group.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWRE DM

During the Year, the Group focused on sale of sub-processing films,
development of residential properties, sale of self-generated photovoltaic
power and sale of cloud-related services. The Group disposed of a
subsidiary, Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd (“Qingdao Ener”)
which was mainly manufacturing and sales of BOPP films during the
second half of the Year and the completion took place on 10 December
2020 (the “Disposal”). Accordingly, the Group’s manufacturing and sales
of BOPP films is classified as discontinued operations.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Manufacturing and sales of BOPP films

In 2007, Qingdao Ener was established to engage in the sales and
manufacturing of films (including cigarette films and non-cigarette
films). In 2012, we acquired 30% equity interest in Qingdao Ener from
Qingdao Beizhou Group Co., Ltd so that our control in Qingdao Ener
was consolidated. Qingdao Ener’s scope of business is the manufacturing
of labels films, film-type additives, film-typed deep-processed products
(aluminised, transfer film); the development and manufacturing of
agricultural film new technology and photolysis film, multifunctional film
and agricultural film new products.

In 2020, the Board noted that the financial performance of Qingdao Ener
had been deteriorating, being loss-making for the last two financial years
ended 31 December 2019. Although Qingdao Ener made a positive net
profit in early 2020, the Board believes that the profit made by Qingdao
Ener will not be sustainable. The Board is of the view that the Disposal
is an exit opportunity for the Group to realise its investment in Qingdao
Ener, and thereby will improve the Group’s asset turnover rate and
generate additional cash inflow, which would enhance the Group’s ability
to grasp other potential investment opportunities in the future.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

As a result of the disposal of Qingdao Ener, the Group has reclassified its
operation into four classes of business namely, (i) sales of sub-processing
cigarette films; (i) properties development; (iii) generation of photovoltaic
power; and (iv) cloud-related business.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Sales of sub-processing cigarette films

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue amounting to approximately
HK$5.1 million from sales of sub-processing cigarette and non-cigarette
films (for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately HK$7.5
million).

Properties development

During the Year, the Group recorded a substantial increase in revenue
generated from the sales of remaining inventories as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019. The revenue increased from approximately
HK$8.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$21.4 million for the Year.

Generation of photovoltaic power

During the Year, the Group had three photovoltaic power stations in
operation, with a total grid-connected capacity of 40 megawatts (“MW").
The revenue generated from this segment reached approximately
HK$53.0 million for the Year (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$54.7 million).

GROSS PROFIT

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$7.4 million, or
approximately 20.3%, from approximately HK$36.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$43.4 million for the Year.
The increase is mainly due to the decrease of cost of sales. Our gross
profit margin increased from approximately 47.9% for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately 54.5% for the Year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately HK$0.4
million, or approximately 45.7%, from approximately HK$0.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$0.5 million for
the Year.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$11.4 million,
or approximately 26.8%, from approximately HK$42.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$31.3 million for the Year
due to our stringent cost management measures.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs decreased by approximately HK$1.2 million from
approximately HK$2.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$1.0 million for the Year. It was mainly due to decrease
of financial interest incurred from bank borrowing.

INCOME TAX

Our income tax increased from approximately HK$1.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$4.4 million for the Year.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately
HK$15.1 million for the Year as compared to a loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$47.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$326.1 million (which were denominated
in HK$, RMB and US$) as compared with approximately HK$165.4 million
as at 31 December 2019, representing an increase of approximately
HK$160.7 million. Such increase was mainly due to the Group’s net cash
inflow of operating activities, net cash inflow of investment activities and
net cash outflow of financing activities that amounted to approximately
HK$106.4 million, approximately HK$75.2 million and approximately
HK$47.9 million respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's
current ratio being the rate of total current assets to total current liabilities
was 16.2 (2019: 2.5).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2020, we did not have any material bank loans,
debt securities, borrowings, guarantees, hire purchase commitments or
mortgages (as at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$69.9 million).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATE

Currently, the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign
exchange exposure. As the functional currency for all subsidiaries in
the PRC are RMB, these subsidiaries were not exposed to any currency
risks due to the exchange rate movement of RMB during the Year. For
subsidiaries established outside the PRC, they had no material financial
assets and liabilities denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group's
exposure to RMB risk is insignificant.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted to
approximately HK$4.8 million.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant event after the Year and
up to the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

On 28 April 2020, Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen China”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Holotek Technology (Zhuhai) Co. Ltd. (the “Purchaser
A"), pursuant to which Sheen China conditionally agreed to sell, and
the Purchaser A conditionally agreed to purchase 30% equity interest
in Qingdao Ener at the consideration of RMB27 million. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 April 2020
(hereinafter “the Disposal A").

On 30 May 2020, Sheen China Group Holdings Inc (the “Vendor”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share purchase
agreement (which was further supplemented on 16 July, 22 July and 30
September 2020) with WF Sinco Limited (the “Purchaser B”), pursuant to
which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell all issued shares of Sheen
China (which mainly held 70% equity interest in Qingdao Ener) at the
consideration of RMB67 million. (hereinafter the “Disposal B”).

Each of the Purchaser A and Purchaser B is independent third parties of
the Company.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the Disposal B exceeds 75%, the Disposal
B constitutes a very substantial disposal for the Company pursuant
to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting,
announcement and the Shareholders’ approval requirements.

The Disposal B had been approved by the shareholders of the Company at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 17 November
2020 and the completion took place on 10 December 2020.

Upon the completion of the Disposal A&B, the Company did not hold
any interest in Sheen China and Qingdao Ener and both Sheen China and
Qingdao Ener ceased to be the subsidiaries of the Company.

For details of the Disposal B, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 29 July, 30 September, 17 November and 10 December
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 26 October 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 74 employees (as
compared with 245 employees as at 31 December 2019) with total staff
cost of approximately HK$12.7 million for the Year. The decrease mainly
resulted from the disposal of Qingdao Ener. The Group’s remuneration
packages are generally structured with reference to market terms and
individual merits. The Company has also adopted a pre-IPO share option
scheme and a share option scheme to provide incentive or reward to high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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PROSPECTS

The Directors and management will dedicate their best effort to lead the
Group to strive for the best interests for its shareholders. The Group has
utilised its resources to expand the Group’s service capacity. And the
Group will continue to improve our operation efficiency and profitability
of our business.

We are now planning to expand our team of professionals, which will
enhance the basis of our technical capability to bid for future projects.
The Group will also proactively seek opportunities to expand our customer
base and our market share and undertake more projects.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of
the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can
meet its funding requirements from time to time.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (referred to as the
“Group” or “we") is a cigarette packaging material manufacturer
and supplier in Mainland China with a leading position in Jiangsu
Province. It focuses on developing the businesses of photovoltaic
power and manufacturing of cigarette packing material. The
principal facilities are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

This report summarises several subjects of the Group’s business
practices for the Environmental, Social and Governance (referred to
as the “"ESG") report (referred to as the “Report”) and its relevant
implemented policies and strategies in relation to the Group's
operational practices and environmental protection. For information
regarding corporate governance, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (the “Year” or “2020").

Reporting Framework

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK").

Reporting Scope

The Report content covers the Group’s ESG policies and measures,
and compliance of the major subsidiaries including Jiangsu Sheen
Color Science Technology Co., Ltd. As the Group already disposed
Qingdao Ener in 2020, environmental and social data of Qingdao
Ener will not be provided in 2020 ESG Report.

Comments and Feedback

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the Chinese
and English versions of this Report. However, in the event of any
inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable comments
from stakeholders. For any clarifications or advice regarding the
content of this ESG Report, please forward your comments and
suggestions to investorrelations@sheentai.com.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Group adjusts and
facilitates the sustainability performance approaches via regular
meetings with major organisational functions such as compliance
affairs, workplace health and safety, and human resources. The
management conducts regular reviews of ESG-related metric
materials to respective subsidiaries. Furthermore, the Group
identifies and evaluates the materiality of the diverse range of
ESG topics that are interrelated with our business operations (See
next section: Materiality Assessment). The most material ESG
topics which guide the Group’s corporate strategy are validated
by the Board. As we advance our sustainability journey, the Group
endeavours to raise the Board's knowledge and awareness of the
ESG landscape.

Materiality Assessment

Sustainable development encompasses a holistic spectrum of
environmental and social aspects. It is crucial for the Group to
determine the most material aspects in order to harness the related
risks and opportunities. The Group adopts a three-step process of
identification, prioritisation and validation to ensure sustainability
topics are being managed and reported in accordance with their
materiality.

(1) Identification

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, all fundamental
sustainability topics were identified. In the context of the
latest sustainability landscape, the Group has determined the
following 23 topics that are deemed to have an impact on
the environment and society through the operations.

ESG aspects

BiE  HERERE@
A. Environmental
A BRE

A1 Emissions

Al BED

Air emissions
FEREER

Greenhouse gas emissions
BEREEHER

B - @ RERHE

AEBRT &

rEBEEEE([E5g ) BRETZHEMKEM
(MERE - TIEGHRERLREURANE
FR)EHAREH - RABRMHES RPN ATHE
BRERBEGL - ERETHHEHNBEARTN
R - @ REREBERETES - H
REE B N ERET RS EREENSE
RIE HERERTENEEM(FL2HT—
£ BRI c KEESHAEMER - A%
BRAAREENRE HERERTERHE
ATH) DA - AR PIHEE RIS EERNIBIZ
o ARBBAONBREESHRE HEME
SR BRRENEE -

BEMNE
ARERRAERANLSEE - RZEFA
HHER RS  AEENERTREENE
H o AEERAHD - RHHER RN =(E
SR ARRBEHEEUHTREERERE
ETERRRE -

(1) &5

RBRE - 4G REAMSIES| - HEP
BEANABERRIE - AR
FEEREE  AEEBREUAT-+=H
RSB EEEHRENTSELTEN

i e

Material ESG issues for the Group
HASEEEAWERE  HERELHRE

Hazardous waste management
BEEEDER

Non-hazardous waste management
BEFEENER

Effluent discharges

J5IKEBERR

Noise emissions

BEBEN

oA R WWNN= =

JERZEREBERAR
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B - 8 RERHE

ESG aspects

BRiE HEBRERE@
A2 Use of Resources

A2 BIRfERM

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RERRAREIR

A4 Climate Change
A4 RIREE

B. Social

B.#E

B1 Employment

B1 {21%

B2 Health and Safety

B2 @ERZE

B3 Development and Training
B3 ZEKIEFI

B4 Labour Standards

B4 25 T %8

B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 B E IR

B6 Product and Service Responsibility
B6 Em &R EE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 R&E’S
B8 Community Investment

B8 {tEIXE

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Material ESG issues for the Group
HASEEEANWERE LERERBE
Energy consumption

BEIREAE

Water consumption

IKEIREFE

Packaging material consumption
9. BEMEIER

10.  Environmental risk management
10. RERERRBRER

11.  Ecological impacts

1. HEEgE

12.  Climate-change strategy

12, RUREMLHYERRES

© ® 00 NN

13.  Employment and remuneration policies

13, EERHEMEE

14.  Occupational health and workplace safety

14, BEEERRIESZMRZE

15.  Employee development and training

15. EEZEIE

16.  Anti-child and forced labour

16. PHlEET REEHIAT

17.  Supply chain management

17, HEsEIE

18.  Quality and safety of the goods/services

18, Em/MRBEERLZD

19.  Customer satisfaction

19. BPWEE

20. Personal data privacy protection

20. AABRRE

21.  Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing
communication and product labelling

21, FBEERERE  EREHIDREMTE

22. Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices

22. REBRRBEFTR

23.  Community investment

23. HEKRE
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RIE HERERERSE

(2) Prioritisation (2) #HmEBEX

The Group sought the views of senior management of REFEMERE  HEgREEENEE
respective operational regions to determine the materiality M AEE2FEEESENESEEEA
of the selected ESG topics. The senior management, who BWEZE BREEEEABYMELA
possesses a high-level view of all the topics and has access to MEEEBEINRER - REEREHE
stakeholders’ feedback, was asked to score the significance FREE - At REZSHDENAEERT
of each ESG topic to stakeholder groups and the Group in RAEHEERE Mg REREENE
each of his/her perspective. The topmost-right quadrant ENMS - ZhE LRREESEEEER
determines the high materiality topics. i o

ESG Materiality Matrix
BN HeREAEEHER

14,18,19
.
16,20,21,22 ¢
L] (] NZ .
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. :
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: ]
= s
359 13 :
) a3 X ,
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<] MATERIALITY 1 2215
L e :
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o = . N
= X :
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Significance to the Group
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JERZEREBERAR 17
2020 F 2R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI - HEREARS

Highly material topics

BEEENZE
Ranking Number Topics
A i BB
Highest 14. Occupational health and safety
BS 14, BERELLZE
18. Quality and safety of the goods/services
18. Ewn/REEERER
19. Customer satisfaction
19. BRmEE
16. Anti-child and forced labour
16. 7 1bE T Kagh| s T
20. Personal data privacy protection
20. BABERRE
21. Protection of intellectual property rights, ethical marketing communication and product
labeling
21. MBEERE  BREEEDREMTE
22. Anti-corruption and anti-competitive practices
22. REBRRBREITR
15. Employee development and training
15. EEERKE
13. Employment and remuneration policies
13. TR M BBUeR
3. Hazardous waste management
3. BEEEYER
5. Effluent discharges
5. TEIREERL
9. Packaging material consumption
9. BEMELERE
17. Supply chain management
17. HresEE e
4. Non-hazardous waste management
4. BEEZVMER
6. Noise emissions
6. 1 E
7. Energy consumption
7. BEIRIEAE
8. Water consumption
8. KEREFE
10. Environmental risk management
10. RE AR ERE
11. Ecological impacts
11. HRERE
Lowest 12. Climate-change strategy
45434 12. RRE LB RS

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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(3) Validation

The Board has reviewed and validated the materiality process,
and hence the Report discloses the Group's performance
on all high and low materiality topics. To address matters
most material to the Group’s stakeholders, topics of high
materiality are discussed in more depth throughout the
Report.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group believes that identifying and addressing stakeholder
views lay a solid foundation to the long-term growth and
success of the Group. The Group engages with a wide network
of stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
shareholders, government and community.

Employees

(== .

- Sheen Tai
ustomers =
= Holdings
2R >

JIE 2= 22 B

Government '

B

The Group develops multiple engagement channels that provide
opportunities for stakeholders to express their views on the Group'’s
general business conduct and sustainability management. The
engagement channels are summarized in the following table. To
reinforce mutual trust and respect, the Group is committed to
maintaining effective communication channels with stakeholders in
both formal and informal ways. This can enable the Group to better
shape its business strategies in order to respond to their needs and
expectations, anticipate risks and strengthen key relationships.

B - @ RERHE

() =&

EFEeCENYREERURER - Fit
ABERBEAKREHNAAERERMERIE
EEUMNTEZRE - SEEHAEER
NERBEZE  ARERHREEZNZ
RRAETTE AR o

&SR

AEERE  HPREEFNEERT/AE
BHRPERMRNBEEREER - AEHH
EzoBnESR  BREER - EF - HE
7 RR - B RAERE -

Community

HE

Shareholders
AR
' Suppliers

R

AEERRZE2HRRE  EROEAKSY
REE - MREBLENAFERREERESR
R 2ERBER TR - BHN58EARGEM
BE AREBNAFEFNENTIARIFIE
ANBHRE - EAEAREE M5 ERBR
B AEEEFERRE - RAER KRS
ZRAR -

JERZEREBERAR
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Stakeholders

Engagement channels

Topics of interest/concern

20

BHE SHRE Bx BB
General meetings Business strategies and sustainability
REAE ETERBE R AT FE R
Regular corporate publications including Financial performance
financial reports and ESG report ISR
EEIZE LY - BREM GRS RIRE Corporate governance
Shareholders e RERRE TEES

PR

Circulars and announcements
Direct enquiries

HEEH

Corporate website

NGIFGR

Performance appraisals Training and development
RIRFTE B B R

Training sessions

Employee remuneration and welfare

Employees FIIFRE & B 3B KA A
B8 Social media Occupational health and safety
HABRE BERERLZE
Equal opportunities
FERE
Business meetings Products/services quality and reliability
E =/ PRIGEE KA ST
Complaint and feedback channels Client data security
Customers Tﬁ%ﬁ&&ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ gﬁ%@%fi\
= Social media Business ethics
RS [EESEL
Corporate website
NCIEEN
Business meetings Fair competition
ES AND TS
Suppliers Supplier assessment Business ethics
HRER e AT [EE3EL
Continuous direct communication
FEEEER
Statutory filings and notification Compliance with law and regulations
EEBRNGEM BICSTE
Government Regulatory or voluntary disclosures Business strategies and sustainability
BT B E Sk BRIk EE TGRS R AR EER
Environmental protection
RERE
Community activities Fair employment opportunities
HEIEE) ANEFERE
Corporate donations Environmental protection
Community ==l RERE
& Corporate website
NCIEENE
Social media
A IEES

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental sustainability is a key part of the Group’s social
responsibility effort. Guided by our Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, we work to manage our direct and indirect impacts to the
environment through mitigating our own footprint and advocating
green finance.

The Group is committed to providing quality products to clients in a
clean and sustainable manner. Our activities typically engage in the
processes of manufacturing and printing films, such as ejection and
stretching, coarse slitting, fine slitting and printing. Environmental
impacts of facilities are managed by the management systems of
each respective subsidiary. The system ensures strict environmental
compliances of various subsidiaries, as well as continual
improvement towards cleaner practices. Periodic system reviews are
conducted to ensure its effectiveness.

Aspect A1: Emissions and waste generated

The Group implements robust systems to ensure all discharges
to air, water and land are compliant with regulatory standards.
The Group has mainly focused on environmental protection and
pollutant emission during production and operation. By establishing
a management system in accordance with the national laws
and regulations, the Group constantly monitors and reviews the
emission performance during production. The Group will make
every effort on clean production, energy-saving, consumption
reduction, pollution reduction and efficiency improvement, so as to
minimise the impact and safeguard of the ecosystem.

During the Year, the Group has encountered no incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to
air emissions, effluent discharges, noise emissions, greenhouse
gases, waste at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations are detailed in respective sections.

Air emissions

The Group's air emissions are mainly released from the vehicle usage
and production processes. Company fleet and machinery undergoes
regular maintenance to ensure fuel efficiency, thereby reducing
emissions.

B - @ RERHE

RIREME

REAHERAEETEEETENEEANK
By ERMVGELSEEHREEET - &
fliE@RL 8 HNREFNEEZESRAS
NEBRBMERFNEEMEEZE -

AEEBBRNANAZFRAFEOTARELIR
HELER - HARED —RPSEREER
ENRIRAZ - PIanss At ~ K940~ oyl %
ENfl - 323 HORBE R E &M B A R R B 2
BEIE - B RS E A RSB A R AR
SPERIBER - A RFESCE AT IR EIRF Y
& I B & MR AT ARECREL AL

BHEAT : FRY R FrIEEBEREY

REBEEREAZHE  BRAAZER KR
WHRYHNEEERE - AREEGHEI%
BAELEREE FNRBREZSRVIR
AR AIRBEEZEZRFOER - $IET —ER
BEERG  TEEN B EEREFA
MERR - AEERERFLE - BIHER B
DHERE B RREREBERE TR
BB BREVEERRGERNZERER
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RAFER  AREREEMREEHERR
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AEENERERTIEREE@WERREER
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control of
air emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Air
Pollution Control. In addition to keeping air emission levels meeting
statutory requirements, the Group commits to further curbing air
pollutants.

The Group released 11.0 kg, 0.2 kg and 0.8 kg of Nitrogen Oxides,
Sulphur Oxides, and Particulate Matter in 2020, respectively.

Air emissions

BESRBERR

Nitrogen Oxides (NO)
AALMNO)
Sulphur Oxides (SOy)
BELW(SO)
Particulate Matter (PM)
FERLYI(PM)

Effluent discharges

The waste water from production processes results in effluent
discharges requires treatment. Each facility ensures its proper
handling, either by qualified subcontractors or on-site processing
prior to discharge to municipal sewers. Processing records from
subcontractors will then be retained by the Group. Our facilities
also generate domestic wastewater that will be monitored prior
to discharge. Periodic monitoring and testing of a comprehensive
list of parameters ensures regulatory compliance and no adverse
environmental impacts of effluent discharges. The major applicable
laws and regulations related to the control of effluent discharges
include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on the Prevention and
Treatment of Water Pollution. During the Year, the Group released
a total amount of 146 cubic metre of wastewater.

Effluent discharge
JIKEERR
Amount of wastewater discharged

AR E

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

BB R A R E B AR ORI B
BRI AR A TS RETAE) - B T B4R
THHOKTHAEEERIN - AEEHNE—
BRERTR o

2020 F REE DB EERI.0AF ~ 0227 &
0.8ATRAINY - ALY B -

kg 11.0
AF

kg 0.2
AF

kg 0.8
AF

TEIKEER
KEEERENEKGELTBRIEH)SKEE
Mo BEREERISKBARERD BB RERSE
ERERHFATECRE - BRAREEASE
RIREBEERE - RPINRELEELEE)S
K EBEDRIR BRI - TE HABDRIAN 2 AR
R A BESKERNAZER TELXRE
REFE - ARERSKEREENERER
ERERBEETRNPBEAOSREAE)
RARFEER - REBHBER1463777K)57K

Unit 2020

B 20205

cubic metre 146
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Noise emissions

The Group's activities are minor sources of noise emissions, which
include mechanical noise from the use of machinery and equipment,
as well as aerodynamic noise from transportation vehicles. Regular
maintenance of machinery and pre-start up inspections ensure noise
levels are kept within regulatory limits. Operational hours are always
conducted within stipulated time frames as under regulations.
Adherence to strict procedures ensures these hazards are managed
effectively. Regular monitoring of noise emission levels ensures
operations are compliant to regulatory levels. The Group ensures
all equipment used provide stationary required protections for
employees and other affected parties.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to control of
noise emissions include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution. Noise
assessments are conducted to determine the impact of noise
emissions on the local community.

Greenhouse gas emissions and climate change mitigation

To implement an effective approach to climate change mitigation, it
is important to have a comprehensive understanding of the carbon
emission sources of the Group. The Group’s carbon footprint
is primarily due to electricity usage, accounted under Scope I
emissions. During the Year, the Group generated a total of 610.3
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) of greenhouse gases
(Scope | and II), resulting in a carbon intensity of 0.02 tCO,e per
square meter gross floor area.

B - @ RERHE

R34

AEENEPELTEMNRE - BEKEER
HEERRBOEMRS  ARERERWNRD)
BE - MR ETHMRENRB A RS ERRES
IKFRIFELEREN < EERFRIGREINE
HATBRMEE A o BRBRROEF I HERAE K
EEZEFRE o FHERIRE F UK F A R
BENREENKYT AEEEREANAER
BARREREMEEE T RIEEEZRNR
2,

BRABRZ MM EREREARERBREE
TR EARKMBERRZREAE) © #
TRSHEUNEERS G AL ENRZE -

BEREBHFRRRERSCREE

AERERNRRERETI - REENE
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Greenhouse gas emissions" Unit
BEREHRO By
Scope | (Direct Emissions) tCO,e 30.5
& E— (EEHE) WE_ (LIS S
Mobile combustion tCO,e 30.5
BRI MR AL E 2
Scope Il (Indirect Emissions) tCOse 579.8
#E = (B WE— SR E 2
Electricity purchased tCOze 579.8
EE WE— S IR E =
Total (Scope | and II) tCO,e 610.3
SEH(EE— k) WE—SE(CIREE
Carbon intensity (Scope | and II) tCO,e/m?* 0.02
mEE(EE k) —EtirEE
A
& The carbon intensity (Scope | and Il) is calculated based on the gross * WEE (BE— R )RGBEEEAE -
floor area.
The Group is committed to reducing our carbon footprint. Scope REEBIBAIRRI o BAIAETBETE b FE &
I and Il emissions are addressed through our energy reduction HE-RZPER(RIA2 18 RBERE]—E) ©
initiatives (See Section: A2.1 Energy Consumption). Scope |l BE=EREERMOBEBEETESE -
emissions incur throughout our value chain, and we employ the BMEREA T HERERER A BHER

following measures to minimise such emissions:

e The Group encourages the use of video conferencing or . AEBESBEETAREGEEAAEILE
emails for communication as far as possible to minimise the o LUR A B INE IS IR TRI TR B I ©

carbon footprint from overseas business trips.

. We make every effort to reduce waste generation and . BB RMER L BEEMEERIRSEER
raise recycling rates to lessen GHG releases from landfill BRAE - R HEESBERARER
decomposition. 2o

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Hazardous waste management

All collected hazardous waste, mainly waste engine oil, is
transported and treated by authorized contractors who possess
qualifications to handle hazardous waste. The amounts of disposed
waste is checked for consistency with contractor reports to ensure
all matter is entirely disposed in the most appropriate manner. All
hazardous waste is stored at designated storage points that are
leak-proof and rain-proof. At each stage, clear protocols have been
established to ensure all hazardous matter is handled and stored in
a safe and secure manner. Any incidents of spillage or leakage will
be handled under proper procedures and be documented.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control
of hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law
on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from Solid
Wastes. To embody sustainable development principles, we aim
to explore opportunities to replace raw materials, equipment and
production techniques that are highly hazardous to the environment
with less hazardous alternatives. We sort our hazardous waste to
ensure those recyclable are recycled, such as toner cartridges that
are returned to suppliers for recycling.

During the Year, the Group’s hazardous waste consists of waste
printer cartridge which does not have a material impact to the
operation.

B - @ RERHE

BEEBEERNER

FBEERENEERREN (TEREREPH
M)A REEEREMREERNEEAER
BHNMEE AEEHEERNERYVBEL
TiRE  MEEREEARENRE —5 - #
RIFEBREMGAREEN T ABERE - M
BB EEEMIRFEN R RNEEFNR
B oo EEERBREERENSRIE  BERME
BEEMENLZ 2N REMEFRE - EEH
FRREHRIBEE RIZRIEL CIRESR

BREEREEMI AN T EERNERIER
BRETRACTHEARKMEE Y5 RIR
BaE) - REREAFEZERRA - BABH
SREAERER  RRHRFELFTRANR
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Non-hazardous waste management BEBEEYNER

The typical non-hazardous waste generated by the Group's facilities AREEEZHBEENETEREEZYBBER K
includes plastic and food waste. The majority of waste is recycled BEERY - KD EEYBERABEBIL -
by qualified contractors. We place a greater emphasis on waste e - RPEINTERDEEY - BAR
reduction, as it creates the least amount of environmental impacts. DEEVHIRENZEATED -

The major applicable laws and regulations related to the control FHEZSEEY AN ER2EMAERZRERES
of non-hazardous waste include, but are not limited to, the PRC FEAB TR AR 2 A R AN 2 B RS RS )5 3R 3%
Law on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution from Fras) - RRABRLEMEER - HMKET
Solid Wastes. Seeking to contribute to the closed-loop economy, HERREZRSEEREBREY RIEAEER
we employ the following measures and initiatives to reduce the BR%E

generation of non-hazardous waste, and raise recycling rates:

e We organize and maintain waste separation systems and o BPAABMAERERY S B RS K ARIK
recycling bins for collecting materials. Smart printing modes SEMEBIBIUAE o 25 B8 ENRIE =t AT 4B
are also available for staff as well. B -

e We monitor and evaluate the use of material to avoid . BMEARTEMERE  Ue2EFB
overstock, as well as strengthen production inspection all % - R IR EEERENEERE
through production processes to reduce and avoid rework. RNk e A B o

During the Year, the Group generated a total of 1,200 kg of non- RAFER  NEBHES1 2008 THEEESE

hazardous waste, resulting in a non-hazardous waste intensity of Y BEBREVEE AT IOREE®IE.03

0.03 kg per square meter gross floor area. NI

Non-hazardous waste Unit 2020
BEBEEY By 20204
Recycled kg 1,200
fammA NI

Total non-hazardous waste generated kg 1,200
FELEEREENES NI

Non-hazardous waste intensity kg/m?* 0.03
BEBEENEE NS r

* The non-hazardous waste intensity is calculated based on the gross * MEBREYTELRGEAEETE -
floor area.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Aspect A2: Use of resources

The Group is committed to continually monitoring and improving
resource efficiency as an integral part of business strategy and
operating methods, as well as complying with relevant government
policies and environmental legislations. During the Year, the
Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations related to the use of energy and
water resources at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations are detailed in respective sections.

Energy

The Group’s energy profile consists of the use of electricity and
natural gas for facility operations. Fuel used for electricity is the
major source of energy emission in our operations, accounted for
85.1% of total energy consumption in 2020. During the Year, the
Group consumed 376.1 GJ and 2,156.1 GJ of direct and indirect
energy respectively, resulting a total energy intensity of 0.07 GJ per
square meter gross floor area.

Energy consumption
BEFE

Direct
B
Natural gas
RIRR
Indirect
fE#
Electricity purchased
BE
Total (Direct and Indirect)
SR (E#EKEE)
Energy intensity

* The energy intensity is calculated based on the gross floor area.

B - @ RERHE

BHEA2 : EREA

EREBRERZESAN—R  AEERN
FEE R R E RN - DA KB ST AR RE BUN
BERRRRED - RAFEAR  AEEELE
1R 15 IR 2 BT BE IR Kok B R F Y i
ROERERNEN - TREMARFOERNE
FARENEAL -

BETR
NEBRGERKABFERAE N RRAREE
B BRENNMABARMEENEERE
TEHE IR - (52020 FF #ABEFERNS5.1% © A
KEEN  AEEDREFE3761 THREER
2,156 1 FIREFEEREEES  BEREE
AT ARERBEO7TTIKEE -

Unit 2020
By 20204
GJ 376.1
FIREE
GJ 376.1
FIREE
G 2,156.1
ThEE
GJ 2,156.1
FIEE
GJ 2,532.2
FIREE
GJ/m2* 0.07
FIREH
Tk

* BERT g mEiastE -
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The major applicable laws and regulations related to energy
use include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Energy
Conservation. The Group is committed to minimising fuel and
electricity consumption through the following initiatives:

° We have installed energy-efficient LED lighting and cooling
systems in production areas. We have replaced computer
equipment, servers, and monitors with energy-efficient
models, and minimise energy usage through the utilisation of
power-saving modes.

Water resources

Production processes as well as general amenities make use of
water. At the Group, our facilities withdraw water mainly from
municipal supplies. We have not encountered any issues in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. However, water resources should not
be taken for granted and conserved to ensure a sustainable future.

The major applicable laws and regulations related to water use
include, but are not limited to, the Water Law of PRC. The Group
practices the following initiatives to curtail our water consumption:

o At part of our general maintenance programme, we regularly
check piping and taps for leakages and damage, and ensure
their prompt repair. We monitor water readings at regular
intervals when no water is being used to ensure against
hidden water leakages.

o We give priority to water-saving products, such as the
adoption of low or dual flush toilets, and low-flow faucets or
water outlets. This is carried out in tandem to the promotion
of water-saving habits throughout premises.

During the Year, the Group consumed a total of 2,196 cubic metre
of water, resulting in a water intensity of 0.07 cubic metre per
square meter gross floor area.

Water consumption

FEK

Total water consumption
HBFEKE

Water consumption intensity

FRTE

* The water consumption intensity is calculated based on the gross
floor area.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect A3: The environment and natural
resources

The Group strives to build an eco-conscious culture that ingrains
positive lifestyles and habits among employees. For corporate social
activities and other events, low-carbon dietary choices and products
from social enterprises are prioritised. Waste reduction plans are
rolled out for large-scale events.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group ingrains social responsibility into all aspects of its
operations. Maintaining honest and authentic dialogue with staff,
the Group seeks to address their needs and views that ensure our
conduct is responsible at all times. We commit to offer a fair and
safe workplace with staff development opportunities. Furthermore,
the Group commits to deliver high quality products grounded on
ethical business conduct and supply chain management, as well as
to engage meaningfully in the community.

Aspect B1: Employment

The Group employed 74 employees, of which 53 and 21 are male
and female staff respectively as at the end of the Year. The Group
employed 72 and 2 full-time and part-time staffs respectively, with
the majority of staff in the age range of 31-60. In terms of the
workforce by region, around 27 and 21 of the Group’s employees
were located in Xuzhou and Huaian respectively, with remaining
staff located in other regions of the PRC and Hong Kong.

Based on the principles of fairness and equality, the Group’s human
resources policies adhere to relevant labour laws, regulations
and industry practices, covering areas such as compensation,
dismissal, promotion, working hours, recruitment, rest periods,
diversity and other benefits and welfare. During the Year, the
Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with all
major applicable laws and regulations related to employment at all
operating regions. Major laws and regulations applicable include,
but are not limited to the Labour Law of the PRC.
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Remuneration and welfare

Employees of the Group are remunerated at a competitive level and
are rewarded according to their performance and experience. The
Group’s human resources policies outline the terms and conditions
of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct and
behaviours, and employees’ rights and benefits. The remuneration
package of employees may include incentive schemes, discretionary
bonuses and/or over-time payments, in addition to salaries. Any
applicable restrictions on wage deduction are stated transparently
in the human resources policies. The promotion and remuneration
of the Group’s employees are subject to periodic review.

Recruitment and promotion

The human resources department of respective subsidiary conducts
a comprehensive recruitment review process based on pre-
determined job function requirements. The Group’s recruitment
and promotion process are carried out in a fair and open manner
for all employees; employees are recognized and rewarded by
their contribution, work performance and skills, and outcomes will
not be affected by any discrimination on the grounds of age, sex,
marital status, family status, race, disability, nationality, religion,
political affiliation and sexual orientation and other factors. In
the case of dismissal, adherence to the Group’s human resources
policies ensures the entire procedure is compliant with statutory
requirements.

Anti-discrimination and diversity

We embrace inclusive employment that builds a respectful
workplace. The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of age, sex, marital status, family
status, race, disability, nationality, religion, political affiliation and
sexual orientation. Personnel staff, line manager and all other
employees who may be involved in staff recruitment receive training
in non-discriminatory practices. We promote a harmonious and
respectful workplace for all. With the aim to ensure fair and equal
protection for all employees, the Group has zero-tolerance for
sexual harassment or other forms of abuse in the workplace in any
form, which is a violation of the labour laws.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Employee communications

The Group's policies and procedures included in staff handbooks
are reviewed and updated regularly. The Group discourages
and disallows any behaviour that violates the regulations in staff
handbooks. Offenders will receive a warning, and the Group has
the right to terminate the employment contract with offenders
for any serious violations. The Group’s staff grievance mechanism
provides confidential channels by which staff may report suspected
cases of rights infringement, which are then handled according to
formal procedures.

Work-life balance

We seek to cultivate a culture of healthy work-life balance. The
working hours management policy ensures no excessive working
hours. The Group, subject to the human resources policies of
respective subsidiary, assists staff to balance commitments outside
of work. Regular reviews are held to refine and improve work-
life balance arrangements. To encourage social bonding in the
workplace, the Group arranged recreational events during the Year,
such as staff leisure activities that promote cohesive bonding among
employees.
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During the Year, the Group’s employee turnover rate was 24.3%.
In terms of gender category, the male and female turnover rate
were 55.6% and 44.4% respectively.

Turnover rate
Group-wide
REEE
By Gender
=R

Male

St

Female

pogid

Aspect B2: Workplace health and safety

The Group is committed to create and maintain a workplace that
minimises safety risk and maximises the health and welfare of our
employees. It is of paramount importance to ensure a safe and
healthy workplace for our employees. The Group’s “Guidelines
on Occupational Safety and Health” was established to inform
employees of potential health and safety hazards in the workplace,
and the corresponding preventative measures. During the Year,
the Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to occupational health
and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the PRC Law on Work
Safety.

The Group spares no effort to safeguard the safety of our
employees and the workplace. We adopt the best practices through
the following safety policies and procedures:

° All safety management system responsibilities and
accountabilities are identified and allocated. We conduct
safety risk assessments that identify and control work hazards
within the prescribed hierarchy of control, and residual risk
evaluation within the guidelines. We take a prevention-
orientation approach where on-site inspections are conducted
frequently to rectify any non-conformances before further
complications.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

We implement transparent mechanisms for reporting hazards,
injuries, illnesses and close calls. It is ensured all accidents
are investigated and reviewed. Working with line managers,
corrective actions that address root causes are drawn up. Any
non-compliance to safety rules and regulations, negligence of
duties, irresponsibility is to be held responsible.

We have systematic claims management mechanisms
for personnel injured at work. In the unfortunate event
of an incident, we place great importance on a healthy
rehabilitation process. We assist a smooth rehabilitation
process whereby the well-being and self-esteem of the
individual is promoted.

We ensure that persons performing tasks are competent
and training attendance records are well documented. All
new employees undergo general safety orientations. Sign-
in procedures are implemented for contractors and visitors
to ensure their safety. All subcontracted work, such as
construction work, is to be performed with equally stringent
safety standards. Prior to work commencement, we request
the safety risk assessment reports and monitor the situations
at regular intervals.

The COVID-19 pandemic has posed unprecedented
challenges to individuals and businesses around the world.
The health of employees is our utmost priority during the
out-break of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19").
One of our factories located in Huaian city, China, shut down
for more than a month. Furthermore, we adopted special
work managements such as work-from-home policies and
flexible working hours, so that our staff can act against
pandemic under flexible commuting plans. Furthermore, we
stopped employees’ travel plans to reduce the chances of
transmission.
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Aspect B3: Development and training

People are our greatest assets. We tailor the macro-level
development of our human capital to the Group’s corporate
strategy. At respective subsidiaries, the Group develops yearly
training plans that comply with relevant statutory requirements and
cater to the needs of our staff. During annual appraisal sessions,
in-depth consultations ensure micro-level training needs are
identified. Internal training programmes provided by the Group
include induction training, on-the-job training, mentoring schemes,
and cross-departmental training. To further promote continuous
development, staff is entitled to educational leaves to attend
external programmes, such as external public trainings, lectures
and seminars. The Group provides tuition reimbursement for
eligible staff to engage in programmes that enrich job knowledge.
During the Year, the Group has encountered no incident of non-
compliance with statutory requirements related to staff training and
development at all operating regions.

For COVID-19 precaution, we provide protective and disinfection
products such as face masks, face shield, alcohol-based hand
sanitisers, hand soaps and gloves at the workplace, and require
employees to wear masks at all time at the workplace. Apart from
that, we required employees to check body temperature before
reporting for duty and after lunch every day. We practice safe
distancing to avoid close contact at work place.

During the Year, the Group has provided a total of 120 training
hours that averages to 1.6 hours per staff.
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Aspect B4: Labour standards

The Group has established and implemented anti-child and forced
labour policies that meet the highest legal and ethical standards.
We do not engage in or condone the unlawful employment or
exploitation of children in the workplace or the use of forced
labour. Staff handbooks contain clear policies relating to relevant
labour laws, regulations and industry practices, covering areas such
as compensation, dismissal, promotion, working hours, recruitment,
rest periods, diversity and other benefits and welfare. Employment
contracts stipulate terms and conditions in adherence to statutory
regulations, and are available in multiple languages as necessary.
The rights and freedoms of every individual are protected as no
worker is asked for surrender identification documents nor lodge
fees or deposits as a condition of employment. Cases of child labour
in our businesses are averted by conducting age verification of all
job applicants. Any employee that suspects a breach of the policy
should submit reports through grievance mechanisms of respective
subsidiaries.

During the Year, the Group has encountered no incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to anti-
child and anti-forced labour practices at all operating regions. Major
applicable laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, the
Labour Law of the PRC.
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Aspect B5: Supply chain management

Leveraging on our status as a major industry player, we recognise
the multiplied impact through engaging our suppliers. The Group
is committed to develop and maintain effective and mutually
beneficial working relationships with our business partners.
During the Year, we have partnered with a total of 16 suppliers
and subcontractors, mainly from Mainland China. Sub-contracted
work includes binding and types of hand-work at some operating
regions.

The supplier code of conduct of respective subsidiaries requires
full compliance with all applicable local and national laws. They
must ensure all operations are environmentally-responsible,
uphold human rights and business ethics. All engaged suppliers
and subcontractors are required to submit statements declaring
conformity to the respective code of conduct. Self-assessment
questionnaires and/or internal audits are used to evaluate supply
chains. To promote accountability, some supplier premises are
provided with confidential communication channels to report actual
or suspected breaches of the code of conduct.

In addition to engaging suppliers, sustainable procurement is
another avenue to mitigate the impact of supply chain activities.
We collaborate with key suppliers in support of environmentally-
responsible procurement. During the Year, we prioritise the
procurement of office equipment with energy-saving features,
replaceable parts that are supported by supplier-provided recycling
schemes.

We avoided any unnecessary face-to-face communications.
Furthermore, we checked temperature of individuals upon arrival
and required them to put on face masks. We provided protective
and disinfection products such as alcohol-based hand sanitisers to
customers at our offices.
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Aspect B6: Product responsibility

The Group offers quality products and services grounded on
responsible operating practices. We commit to meet customer
needs through innovation and sound business ethics.

Product quality and safety

Displaying ability, professionalism and reliability in everything we
do, we offer products and services with added value. During the
Year, the Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations related to product/service
quality and safety at all operating regions. Major applicable laws
and regulations include, but are not limited to, the Product Quality
Act of PRC.

With a customer-focused and evidence-based approach, the
Group strives for continual improvement to product quality. The
Group’s management system is implemented through performing
quality assurance to examine the product’s quality against required
parameters at every stage of the production process. Input raw
materials are tested against customers’ technical specifications.
Finished products undergo inspections prior to packaging and
delivery to clients. Each department is tasked with achieving their
own quality based targets in consideration of both the industry and
market standards.

The Group also implements a source-to-end inspection framework
from material procurement and sourcing process to finished
product and storage. Any quality defect material or product will be
suspended from production line in order to prevent potential risks
and protect interests of clients and the Group.
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Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects of our
businesses with integrity and honest values. From the protection
of data privacy and intellectual property to ethical marketing
communication, our robust management approaches ensure
even the most trivial aspects are not overlooked. During the Year,
the Group has encountered no incident of non-compliance with
all applicable laws and regulations related to the protection of
data privacy and intellectual property to the ethical marketing
communication at all operating regions. Major applicable laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, the Criminal and Civil
law of PRC.

Information security safeguarding

The Group is committed to protect the privacy and confidentiality of
personal data collected. The Group has established clear protocols
on handling personal data recorded from our customers and
employees. We collect data only in a lawful and fair way, for directly
related purposes of which the data subject is clearly notified.
Adhering to protocol requirements, we ensure the data is accurate
and not kept longer than necessary. Personal data inventories are
secured to prevent any unauthorized or accidental access, such as
firewalls and physical protection.

The Group has established the privacy policy on handling personal
data recorded from our customers, staff, as well as end-users of our
online services. The Group secures the personal information from
unauthorized access, use or disclosure. Recognising the materiality
of security risks, the Group evaluates security risks related to the use
of information technology.

Advertising and product labelling

Responsible marketing practices are crucial to gaining customer trust
and confidence. All sales promotions should be dealt with a fair and
honourable manner. The sales manager or equivalent of respective
subsidiaries ensures all public sales and marketing information are
reviewed and approved of its trueness and completeness. Any forms
of promotions must not contain any misleading information and
need to be designed to meet reasonable consumer expectations. All
product labelling is an accurate representation of the sourcing and
content of products.
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to achieve and maintain the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. We adopt
the lowest level of acceptance for corruption risks and we
build a culture of zero tolerance to any related practices. Anti-
corruption code of conducts at respective subsidiaries stipulates
our management approach towards anti-corruption compliance.
During the Year, the Group has encountered no incident of non-
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations at all operating
regions. Major laws and regulations applicable include, but are not
limited to, the Criminal Law of the PRC.

The code of conducts applies to all employees of the Group, and
must be complied at all times. The Group prohibits the provision or
receipt of gifts and/or entertainment that could be considered of
material value. Senior management is also clearly provided guidance
on what constitutes abuse of office, such as regarding the misuse
of company’s assets for personal interest. With regard to conflict
of interests, the fundamental rule is to avoid any conflict of interest
as far as practicable. In the event of an inevitable case, the conflict
of interest is required to be declared so that appropriate resolution
actions can be taken.

The development of robust internal controls is the key to our
management approach. Any offering and acceptance of gifts or
advantages are recorded and handled via a transparent mechanism.
Each subsidiary company has a form of whistle-blowing channel
where any suspected cases of misconduct or failure to act are
reported and handled.

The Group promotes fair and open competition through code of
conducts on combating anti-competitive practices. We prohibit
cartels, and any activities of trade associations and industry bodies
which prevent, restrict or distort competition. No discussion or
agreement is carried out on matters related to pricing, production
volume and tenders with competitors. The Group recognises
that adherence to the principles of competition is essential to the
development of long-term relationships with our stakeholders on
mutual trust.
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RIE - HERERRE

Aspect B8: Community investment

The Group is committed to operate as a responsible corporate
and continually supporting the economic and social vitality of
local communities through corporate sponsorships and charitable
donations. Furthermore, the Group sees high literacy as a
foundation for the advancement of society. The Group believes
public welfare is important and necessary for the development
of the Group. We always seek to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates.

We believe that the development of a better future for our
community relies on joint participation of people, corporations
and the government. In addition, the Group also encourages
all employees to actively participate in volunteer activities and
environmental protection activities. We hope it can raise their
concern for environment and society, and thus inspiring more
people to participate in community services and develop a better
future for our community.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guo Yumin, aged 59, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012.
Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall management and formulation of
business strategy of the Group. Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-
learning college of the School of the Central Committee of Communist
Party of China in 1988, majoring in economic management. Since
1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in cigarette packaging business
and established a strong business tie with the senior members of some
cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive business and management
experience in commercial business to our management team. In 2005,
Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of Commerce
and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In 2010, Mr.
Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and has been
its legal representative since then. Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an
executive Director.

Ms. Xia Yu, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director on 22
June 2012. She is responsible for general management of the Group.
Ms. Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu
Commerce College (which was combined with other colleges to form
Yangzhou University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia has 20
years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business
management and financial management in cigarette packaging business.
Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director
on 1 January 2013. Mr. Zeng is responsible for the overall management
and business of the Group. Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University
with a Bachelor of Physic degree in 1988 and obtained a Master degree
of Materials Science from Zhejiang University in 1991. Mr. Zeng possesses
more than 20 years of experience in the cigarette-related industry in the
PRC and is familiar with the practice of the tobacco market in the PRC.

Ms. Fan Qing, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both
the PRC and Hong Kong. Ms. Fan received a master’s degree in business
administration from the Graduate School of Renmin University of China in
2000. She obtained a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
after completing a training course for the senior management member of
a listed company in the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president
of Shenzhen Capital Group Co. Ltd. for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently
the chairman of the board of directors of an investment management
company in Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca
Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: SZ002213), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Dai Tin Yau, aged 36, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Dai graduated from University
of South Australia with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in May 2009
and graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a master’s
degree in professional accounting in March 2016. He is currently a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Dai worked in P. K. Wong & Co. from May 2004 to
March 2008 and his last position was audit semi-senior. Mr. Dai then
worked in Y. F. Pang & Co. from December 2008 to July 2011 where he
last served as an assistant manager in the assurance department, and in
RSM Nelson Wheeler from November 2011 to April 2013 as a senior in
the audit and assurance services department. Since May 2014, Mr. Dai has
taken the position as an audit senior in Arken Consulting Limited. After
leaving Arken Consulting Limited in June 2015, Mr. Dai co-founded Prism
CPA Limited in December 2015 and served as a director since then.

Mr. Chan Yin Lam, aged 39, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 29 May 2020. Mr. Chan graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration (majoring in accountancy and management information
systems) in July 2002 and graduated from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology with a master’s degree in business
administration in November 2010. He is currently a Chartered Financial
analyst charter holder and a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan was an associate and subsequently
promoted to the senior associate position during his employment in
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. from September 2002 to May 2006. Mr.
Chan worked in Somerley Limited from June 2006 to December 2009,
and he last served as a senior manager responsible for equity capital
market issues and financial advisory assignments. He then worked in
Haitong International Securities Group of Companies from May 2010 to
June 2013, and his last position was senior vice president in the corporate
finance department. Mr. Chan joined China Merchants Securities (HK)
Co., Limited from July 2013 and his last position prior to his departure
in February 2018 was executive director in financial institutions team
of corporate finance and capital markets division. Since March 2018,
Mr. Chan has taken the position as managing director and head of
corporate finance of investment banking department in Fosun Hani
Securities Limited (“Fosun Hani”), and currently he is also the co-Head
of Investment Banking Department and responsible officer of Fosun Hani
to carry on type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under
the SFO.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Zhenghua, aged 65, graduated from a self-taught course in
Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University in 1986, and obtained
the qualification certification as an economist in 1993. Mr. Dong passed
the uniform examination organised by the Chinese government authorities
and obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser in 2003. Mr.
Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and handling corporate-
related legal matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong graduated
from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised by the China University of
Political Science and Law and the Open University of China and obtained
the qualification of intermediate professional manager as approved by the
Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training & Certification
Committee. Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal advisor of the
Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of the Group.

Besides the senior management mentioned above, various business
of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the
executive Directors as named previously, who are also regarded as senior
management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERBE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously abide by the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the Year except for the deviations from
code provision A.2.1 of the Code as stated below.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, there was no chief executive in the Company,
details of the deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer”.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

RE-ELECTION AND CHANGE OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his/her appointment and any Director appointed by the
Board as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Pursuant to article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”)
and Mr. Zeng Xiangyang (“Mr. Zeng") will retire as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in 2021 (the “AGM"). Mr. Guo and
Mr. Zeng, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at
the AGM.

Each of Mr. Guo, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Zeng, being executive Directors, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 13 July 2018 and may be terminated by either party by
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Ms. Fan Qing, being an independent non-executive Director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of two years
commencing from 13 July 2020 and may be terminated by either party by
giving at least three months’ written notice.

Mr. Dai Tin Yau and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, being independent non-executive
Directors, each of them has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of 2 years commencing from 29 May 2020 and may
be terminated by either party by giving at least three months’ written
notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions for the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.
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BEERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEEg

The Board comprises three executive Directors and three independent HRAFRE A  EFCH-FRTES R =-FBIIF
non-executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are  #IfTE =K @ FHBHIEHWOT :
set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) PERFTEEE)

Ms. Xia Yu Bt

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang B k5L

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES

Ms. Fan Qing Pl

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (Resigned on 29 May 2020) F S (FA2020495 A29 A B#HT)

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Retired on 29 May 2020) EEFERSA (202045 429 EME)
Mr. Dai Tin Yau (Appointed on 29 May 2020) AR TE (20205 5298 ERT)
Mr. Chan Yin Lam (Appointed on 29 May 2020) PR E TR S (FA20204F5 A29 B ERT)

The brief biographical details of and relationship among the existing IRAEZENEEEBLBERIANAFRIEELSH
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and  EIEERAE | —&F ©
Senior Management” of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors EEEHKEREER  BUTFE - BLEEHES
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning B HEM® - EROCENFELR A AKRER
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The ¥&{EHER - RAFEARQARC BT EHALE
Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2)  3.10(1) R Q2)IEA K 3. 10AERTFE - 2B IENITE
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules for the Year. All independent non-executive ~ B JNESF_ET R RIS 3. 1316 AT A B L M FHHE5I A
Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their independence as  #i7E °

set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Save as disclosed above, ZHEREEAERLLTHEE - Br EXATHTEEIN
there are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or EE &K E 2 MW BRI EMBE(BEHHG - %
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board. % KRR EMEKR FHBERRER) -
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of
the Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of
the shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group's strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group's financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, there
have been no chief executive officer in the Company. Mr. Guo Yumin
acted as the Chairman of the Board, and responsible for the overall
management and formulation of business strategy of the Group.

The Board does not have the intention to fill the position of the chief
executive officer of the Company at present and believes that the absence
of the chief executive officer will not have adverse effect to the Company,
as decisions of the Company will be made collectively by the executive
Directors. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Board and the need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform
the role of chief executive. Appointment will be made to fill the post to
comply with code provision A.2.1 of the Code if necessary. During the
year, one meeting has been held by the Chairman of the Board with
the independent non-executive Directors, without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments, the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are summarised as follows:

Board
meeting
Ezges
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) BERKE(ZE) 13/13
Ms. Xia Yu ERETE 13/13
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang BrfGsE 13113
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES
Ms. Fan Qing BBItL 1313
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix Wakilbik
(resigned on 29 May 2020) (7202095429 R &HT) 6/13
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy BEELLE
(retired on 29 May 2020) (R202095A29RE ) 6/13
Mr. Dai Tin Yau HRHEE 713
Mr. Chan Yin Lam RERLE 713
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the "Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012 with
written terms of reference which are in compliance with the code
provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three members
comprising Mr. Dai Tin Yau (being the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, all being independent non-executive
Directors.

During the Year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the final results
of the Group for 2019 and the 2020 interim results and report of
the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
internal audit function for the Year. The Group’s final results for the Year
had been reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the
Board for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report complies with the Listing
Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee at the Audit Committee meetings are
set out above.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment
thereof; and (ii) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual
executive Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable
to them. No Director shall participate in any discussion about his or her
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of three members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Dai Tin
Yau, both of which are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr.
Guo Yumin, an executive Director. The majority of members of the
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference
to their respective experience, responsibilities within the Group and
general market conditions. The Company has adopted the Code to
make recommendations to the Board on remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and the members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out
above.

At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors
for the Year.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size, diversity and composition
(including the age, gender, cultural and academic background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
change; (ii) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iii) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin
(Chairman), an executive Director, Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Chan Yin Lam,
both of which are independent non-executive Directors. The majority of
members of the Nomination Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee adopted a diversity policy
setting out the approach to diversify the members of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board. The Nomination Committee works to ensure a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business and objectives. All Board appointments would
continue to be made based on meritocracy. Selection of candidates would
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not be limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision would be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates would bring to the Board, our business model as well
as the needs of the Company. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy from time to time to ensure the
effectiveness of the diversity policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.
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NOMINATION POLICY

Apart from the aforesaid, the Board has adopted a “Nomination Policy”
on 31 December 2018 in relation to the nomination, appointment,
re- appointment of new Directors and the nomination procedure of the
Company, which provides that in evaluating and selecting any candidate
for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall consider the candidates’
character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience, independence, diversity on the Board, willingness to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and such other
criteria that are appropriate to the business of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a “Dividend Policy” on 29 March 2019. A
summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and requirement of the
relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to the Shareholders
if the Group is profitable, operations environment is stable and there is no
significant investment or commitment made by the Group, after taking
into account the factors as detailed below and determined by the Board
from time to time. The remaining net profits will be used for Group’s
development and operations. The Policy allows the Company to declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to the annual dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account,
inter alia:

(@)  the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c)  the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(d)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders;

(e)  the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(f)  general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal and external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(g)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Any final dividends declared by the Company must be approved by an
ordinary resolution of Shareholders at an annual general meeting and
must not exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board
may from time to time pay to the Shareholders such interim dividends as
appear to the directors to be justified by the profits of the Group.

The policy shall be reviewed periodically and submitted to the Board for
approval if amendments are required.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company as at the date
of this report.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors during
the Year, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zeng Xiang Yang, Ms. Xia Yu,
Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Dai Tin Yau and Mr. Chan Yin Lam, had participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Directors had provided the relevant
record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable trainings
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

ARARBIRMEMRBREBERRRBFARG LE
PBRREBRERISIE - BTGB EFSHE
&R - WEBRR/ANEEAH D IIOE MR IAEL
BHENK  EFGATERRRIKN P RS

WERBBRER]  HERREHEFTSEREHNLERT
HAHAE -

BAUFHTES

ARBEWEIR B FFNITERRIE LTRANFE313
BEEABMEBYMNFERRE - RAREEH
AARRAERBILFNTEEHABILNARFH
At

EENEXRRRE

REETHZTFANGEXEA6SG  2RER(BIFE
R4k BrfGEE BEREZL - BBLL - 8XA
RERREFREL)RAFEHELMBEZEE
BERMEMRE 2B NG URRREEETS
HABRIAMBNEATHESSFLER - 88
EEMAR BB -

ARABIREBETNRBEEXRRLTFAENE
IR HEBREREE - SEETRHEHRIRTREHE
B BRETEMBERE EWARR  EAEN NRE
ERTREAEEESBRRBAREZZHEME - 2883
ENATHEEXERNERN  XBH2HBEME
B HY IR A 35 R 3 5B 157 S O AN Ko A BE

JERZEREBERAR
2020%F 3R

53



54

Corporate Governance Report
EEERBME

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S REMUNERATION

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the
Year fell within the following band:

RMB1,000,000 or below

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of
the independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
fee payable to RSM Hong Kong in respect of its statutory audit services
provided to the Company was approximately HK$1.3 million. Fees for
non-audit services for the same period was approximately HK$0.4 million.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the senior management are responsible for improving and
monitoring the risk management and internal control of the Group. In
this regard, the Audit Committee had performed a regular review of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group within the
Reporting Period in which the results were summarised and reported to
the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. The Group
also sets up an internal audit team comprise management of subsidiaries,
which plays a major role in monitoring the corporate governance of
the Group and providing objective assurance to the Board that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated by the management.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities
of the members in the framework are described as follows:

Board of Directors

=

Board level

EEEEE

Audit Committee
EEZEY
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Member

The Board

Audit Committee

Main Responsibilities

Set up goals for risk management strategy,
assess and determine the nature and extent of
risk acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;
Establish and maintain a proper and effective
risk management and internal control systems;
and

Review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems annually.

Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level
and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systems;
Discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with the management;

Ensure that the internal audit function has
sufficient resources for operation and has
a proper position, review and supervise its
performance;

Keep updated of various major risks confronted
by the Group and the risk management status,
make decisions for effective risk control;
Report the risk status of the Group and issues
to be concerned or improved to the Board on
a regular basis;

Facilitate risk management and assessment,
regularly appoint relevant accountable persons
to implement risk assessment;

Organise and promote the establishment of
the risk management system at the Group
level;

Review material risk assessment report and
various risk management reports; and

Engage relevant persons to organise and
coordinate various departments and projects
to carry out identification and assessment of
significant risks at the Group level, summarise
and analyse such information, submit risk
assessment and various risk management
reports.
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Member Main Responsibilities

Internal audit team Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk
team assessment in compliance with the risk
assessment manual formulated by the Group;
e Review and approve the risk assessment results
of the subsidiaries in respect of the business;

e Ensure that the subsidiaries implement
effective risk management;

e Monitor the principal business risks confronted
by the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of
relevant risk management measures; and

e Allocate resources such as fund and workforce
to the subsidiaries for implementation of the
risk assessment projects.

The Process Used to Identify, Assess and Management
of Principal Risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk identification

identify the current risks confronted.

Risk analysis — conduct analysis on the risk including the
impact extent and possibility of occurrence.

Risk response — choose a proper risk response method and
develop a risk mitigation strategy.

Control measures — propose up-to-date internal control measures
and policy and process.

Risk control — continuously monitor the risks identified and
implement relevant internal control measures
to ensure the effective operation of the risk
response strategy.

Risk management — summarise results of risk assessment and
report analysis and internal audit, formulate
and report an action plan.
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The process used to review the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and to
resolve material internal control defects

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different
departments and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and
complete communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the
monitoring and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect
and examine their own risk management process in order to locate
the shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection
and examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management
department in time.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating to
the Group’s risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (“Ms. Pang”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 1 October 2017. Ms. Pang has adequate knowledge on
the Company to discharge her duty as the Company Secretary. Ms.
Pang confirmed that she had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

In order to keep Shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided
to the Shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.sheentai.com
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its Shareholders
and the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investors. A shareholders
communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012 to comply with code
provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly to
the Company through the following e-mail: investorrelation@sheentai.com.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

HK Address: Room 1903, 19/F Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: investorrelations@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/
or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles for including
a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’
Right to Convene an Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a retiring
Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office
or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.
Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

There had been no significant changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year.
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The Directors are hereby to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in the consolidated financial statements Note 23 in this annual
report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, Chapter
622, can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of the
Group, some of which are inherent to the businesses in which the Group is
engaged and some are from external sources. Major risks are summarised
below:

i) The Group relies on a sole customer in
photovoltaic power business segment

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on the
government authority State Grid Jiangsu Electric Power Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Power Supply Branch* (“State Grid Jiangsu”), as it is
the sole customer of the Group in photovoltaic power business
segment since 2015. The Directors consider, with reference
to “Several Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the Healthy
Development of the Photoltaic Industry”* ¢ B 7 B B8 A2 1 ¢ R
EXREZEREMNETER), "Administrative Measures for the Full
Guaranteed Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power Generation”*
(A BAERREE2BREERIEEEITE), "Regulations on the
Supervision of the Full-scale Acquisition of Renewable Energy Power
Generation by Grid Enterprises”* ( Bt 25U EE A] B ERER
EBEEPE) and "Notice on standardizing the management of
priority generation priority purchase plan”* (}R &3 E L TE L
BREIEIEMAA), the Company’s photovoltaic power plants will
continue to enjoy the guarantee of the local government'’s purchase
of full on-grid electricity and subsidies for renewable energy by
2035.

*  For identification purposes only
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ii)

iii)

However, if there is any change of the relationship with State Grid
Jiangsu, it is not easy for the Company to sell its electricity to other
customers as the electricity market in Xuzhou City has not been
liberalized, which could in turn materially and adversely affect the
business operations and financial performance of the Group.

The Group relies on certain major suppliers

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on certain
major suppliers for a significant portion of the purchases. If they
fail to make timely delivery of their products and the Group fails to
source from other suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner,
the operation of the Group could be delayed. The relationship
between the Group and its customers could also be adversely
affected as a result of any such delays, which could in turn
materially and adversely affect the business operations and financial
performance of the Group.

The fluctuation of exchange rate may have a
material effect on the business and performance
of the Group

The sales of the Group are denominated in RMB and the purchases
are denominated in US$ and RMB. The Group does not engage
in any exchange rate hedging activities. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rates of RMB and US$ may have an adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Appreciation of the value of US$ may increase the costs of the
Group and thus subject the Group to increased competition from
domestic competitors, and depreciation in the value of RMB may
adversely affect the earnings, as well as the value of the net assets
and dividends from the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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iv) PRC political, economic and social conditions and
government policies could affect the business of
the Group

All of the operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC and
the Group expects that a majority of the revenue will continue to
be derived from the operations in the PRC. The results of operations
and prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The economy of the
PRC differs from the economies of most developed countries in
many respects, including the extent of government involvement,
the level of development, the growth rate, and government control
of foreign exchange. The Group cannot predict whether changes in
the PRC’s political, economic and social conditions, laws, regulations
and policies will have any material adverse effect on the current or
future business, results of operation or financial condition of the
Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Details of environmental Policies and performance are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the Group’s operation is in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As far as the Directors
are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group attracts and retains key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which would complement
and meet the corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group
ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary adjustments
are made to the remuneration packages to align with the market
standards.
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The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and
has ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings
to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend at HK$0.01 per share (2019:
Nil), totalling approximately HK$24,341,000 (2019: Nil) which was paid in
October 2020.

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (2019: Nil).

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") to be held on 28 May 2021, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 25 May 2021 to 28 May 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. The record date will be on 28 May 2021. In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on 24 May 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
19 in this annual report.

BANK BORROWINGS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Details of bank borrowings and lease liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
32 and Note 37, respectively, in this annual report.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
in five year financial summary. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in the
consolidated financial statements Note 29 in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the Year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of approximately HK$15.1
million (2019: loss attributable to equity shareholders of approximately
HK$47.9) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in this
annual report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal” in
this annual report, there were no significant investments held nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of important event affecting the Group subsequent to 31
December 2020 are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
94.5% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 70.5% of the total sales for
the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 93.5% of the total purchases for the Year and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 75.7% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and as at the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)
Ms. Xia Yu
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Qing

Mr. Dai Tin Yau (Appointed on 29 May 2020)
Mr. Chan Yin Lam (Appointed on 29 May 2020)
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Retired on 29 May 2020)
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (Resigned on 29 May 2020)

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 15(a) in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 15 and Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and other director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

£
RARFEERRARE ABERNERLEQNT :

HITES
PBEREE(EE)
BELT
LmSsEE

BUFHITES

B L

BRAG % A4 (7220205E5 A29 R &£ 1E)
FRE RS (FA202055 A29 8 & 1E)
EER LA (2202095 A29HRIE)
F A (202045 A29 B E#T)

EERHMSREEBNER

EENHEMSREEENBEEABERNAFRIZEER
SRERERE | —HHE -

EEHM

EEHFRBRNAF R MBREME15(a) - B
EHNH2REEFNEARB 2B NRBEMETE

EENRS REREHNZERER

MR e MBIRRMEE 1S M2 RBEEAREEAR
BIRRE KIS - FF AR SRR A ] 5 P X B A7 4B (AT
MARARRILMARRIESE REBEATER AR
BEEARBZEARS - THRALD -

ERRRRERENHER

RARRENE R B MR R REAANE A
ARAFRELETEMERAL



MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The independent non-executive Directors had, in the Board meeting
during the Year, reviewed the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited
(“Sheentai BVI") and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo”) in a deed of non-
competition entered into between Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour
of the Company on 28 June 2012. The independent non-executive
Directors were not aware of any non-compliance of the Non-competition
Undertakings given by Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the Year and up
to the date of this annual report. Each of Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo
confirmed that he/it had complied with the Non-competition Undertakings
given by him/it from the date of the Non-competition Undertakings and
up to the date of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 4(t) in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$691.5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(@ As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares and the underlying
Shares

Name of Director

EEHR

Capacity/Nature
B,/ HE

Mr. Guo Yumin
("Mr. Guo”)
FER([EBEE]

(Note 1)
Ry EEER ()
Beneficial owner (Note 2)

BESBEEANNZE2)

Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4)

FiB s (a3 K4)

Interest of a controlled corporation

EERKRD - HERORESFHEDIKX
v}

(@) F2020912A318 » ARAEZEFHESTEA
BRARE S AR EE (EE R FH M
B (TBHFRBEKH ) BEXVI) &RD -
BEARMD REHF - BEERBEESFRHEK
BIEEXVEBEE 7 M8 SR AN S AN A 7] K B <2 P ) 4
MK B (BIERIRE F M E GO S 1630
EESR AR 2 EMERIOKE) « AR
B RS G0 E 35216 F R IGFTIE & s fit
iR RARE - SR ETRAIMER1I02 £
NAEFHEITEFRZHORETAAENSER
AR RS OABIAT

() RRORBERDZHFR

Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia")
BER([Ext])

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
("Mr. Zeng")
RS BEE])
Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan™)
R (BrE])
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Interest of spouse (Note 5)
B tS s (A15E5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3)
BB ANME3)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)
Ema AMTe6)

Beneficial owner (Note 7)

BB ANHE7)

Number of
HETEET
underlying
Shares held/
interested Approximate
=Yg 2] percentage of
RO R interest
HERDEE B AD AR
1,206,086,000 49.55%
272,356,164 11.19%
33,094,000 1.36%
1,478,442,164 60.74%
33,094,000 1.36%
4,000,000 0.16%
800,000 0.03%



(ii) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated

Corporation

Name of associated
Name of Director corporation

ESnS EBEE AR

Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner
A EmfAA
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse
B+ (K1:#5) fe B s

Notes:

1. Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of

Sheentai BVI. Therefore Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the 1,206,086,000 Shares held by Sheentai
BVI for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of
Sheentai BVI.

2. These 272,356,164 Shares and underlying Shares represent
the 272,356,164 Shares owned by Mr. Guo.

3. These 33,094,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent the
33,094,000 Shares owned by Ms. Xia.

4., Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo
is deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares and
underlying Shares in which Ms. Xia is interested.

5. Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is
deemed, or taken to be interested in all the Shares and
underlying Shares in which Mr. Guo is interested for the
purpose of the SFO.

6. These 4,000,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent:

(a) the 2,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Zeng;
and

(b) the 2,000,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted
and issued to Mr. Zeng upon full exercise of the share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme
adopted by the Company on 22 June 2012 (the “Share
Option Scheme”, each share option granted under
the Share Option Scheme is referred to as “Share
Option”) to him.

Capacity/Nature
5,/ HE
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y). These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 7. #%800,000% 1878 i 0 18 A B E1 T 1A
Shares which may be allotted and issued to Ms. Fan upon full SeRTEREAERER A R A B R
exercise of the Share Options granted to her. E£1THY800,000R% A% 5 °

(b)  So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2020, the (b) IEEZFTH] - B2020F12A31H LM FA L

following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the (EX(BFMEEsAAREFAZRITBAS
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or BRON IR D SRRt P HE B IR R R 5 B E
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to TRBIEXVERE2 R 835 B MG SRR AR A 7 )2
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the BT EMERIORE - KEEREERE
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are, B A ) A PAME (AL 0 T TR AN SR B AR H A Ak
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal BRFNRRAE LIRENEMAERRAEE
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all 10% 3k A _EAYfER ¢
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:
The Company PN
Number of
Shares held/ Approximate
interested Percentage of
Capacity/Nature of interest ie=y4 %] shareholding
513 EmitE ERRHAEE REE D LA
Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1,206,086,000 49.55%
EmEaA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had & EXXFF#EESN - 1202012318 » #EE0
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive ~ A+ (ARARERHZSITHRA BRI HMERATE
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or  FAR% {7 sk AERIILD AR 1 B ZBARIE 75 5 I B S 155 XV
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under — #B52 R E35 &2 & AR FHEE @ it AKRA A
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were  1B{EE 5 KIS KNI E336IKETFE 2 S Mg
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to KX A °

Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS" RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme"”) on 22 June 2012. A summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows:

1.  Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial shareholder
of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, options
to subscribe for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis
of his contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.
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Total of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares
in issue as at the date of listing of the shares of the Company (or
such numbers of shares as shall result from a sub-division or a
consolidation of the shares of the Company from time to time),
i.e. 40,000,000 shares representing 10% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of listing. On 25 September 2015,
each of the existing issued and unissued shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company was sub-divided
into four sub-divided shares of HK$0.0025 each (the “Shares
Subdivision”). As such, the maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other scheme of the Company is adjusted from 40,000,000
to 160,000,000.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to
subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (which were adjusted to 58,400,000 shares
of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares Subdivision) were granted to
certain Directors and employees of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme.

Therefore, as at the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme and
any other scheme of the Company was 49,550,000 representing
approximately 2.03% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.
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Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant options, there is no performance target which
must be achieved before any of the options can be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant of the option.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on the date on 22 June 2012 (the date on
which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by the
Company) and shall expire at the close of business on the business
day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless
terminated earlier by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.
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On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options to subscribe for
a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
were granted to certain Directors and employees of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme. Among the share options granted above,
2,100,000 share options were granted to the Directors to subscribe for a
total of 2,100,000 shares of the Company. For details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 September
2015 in relation to the adjustment to the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme upon the share subdivision of the Company becoming
effective on 25 September 2015.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under the

Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

201551 H29H - AJRES $£14,600,00008 A A 7
SRRME(EO.01/78 JT Ay & i@ AX Y 14,600,00017 fE A% 4
ERBEBRETERTFETARAEERIES - AT
RS 2,100,000 ERETIE TEE - MU
RIEA 2,100,000 AR FI G - FBEBLHEAR
AIBEIA201541 298 A% o

FE2HAATBEA2015F9R24BH A E - B A
A D BN R AR 2015429 F 25 B A 3 Al 2 BB A A
*

=

g
O

R

o

PASRE B R IR BRI AR (T (IR
HERIIT

Number of
options
granted on Outstanding Outstanding
29 January as at as at
2015 1 January 31 December
20155 2020 During the reporting period 2020
18298 R2020% REEHR 20205
Name of grantee ERERE 1A1A Exercised Cancelled 12A31R
ERARE #8 AT B BH# WA
Director EZ
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang ey 2,000,000 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix pLilkie
(resigned on 29 May 2020) (R2020%5A29HEHE) 800,000 800,000 - - 800,000 -
Ms. Fan Qing ERLT 800,000 800,000 - - - 800,000
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy BERLE
(retired on 29 May 2020) (20205529 1F) 800,000 800,000 - - 800,000 -
Employees and advisers ESRER 54,000,000 49,250,000 - - 2,500,000 46,750,000
Total At 58,400,000 53,650,000 - - 4,100,000 49,550,000
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed approximately 74 full-
time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in kind
and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The Group
also established the Share Option Scheme to incentivize the senior
management and employees, further details of which are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this report. When
reviewing and determining the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management, the Company takes into
consideration factors such as their individual performance, qualification,
experience and seniority, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration. The
Group determines the staff’s remuneration based on factors such as
qualifications and work experience.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles of Association, every Director is
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing
Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
for the reappointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 198, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Impairment of trade and bills receivables; and

2. Impairment of loan and other receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
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BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BERESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRPRBHERPNMEERRETSE

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has trade and bills
receivables with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$98,804,000. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year in respect
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables amounted to
approximately HK$252,000.

Loss allowance for trade and bills receivables are based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses (“ECL") to be incurred, which is estimated by taking
into account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
trade and bills receivables, customers’ repayment history
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement. The management engaged a
qualified external valuers to assist in the assessment.

We identified assessing the recoverability of trade and bills
receivables and recognition of loss allowance are inherently
subjective and requires significant management judgement,
which increases the risk of error or potential management bias.
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Our procedures included:

° Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of trade and bills receivables prepared by the external
valuer engaged by the Group;

° Assessing the external valuers’ qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering their objectivity and
independence;

o Assessing whether trade and bills receivables was
appropriately grouped by the management into
categories with shared credit risk characteristics;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
completeness of the data used by the management to
develop historical loss rates and assessing the sufficiency,
relevance and reliability of that data;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing of
trade and bills receivables to supporting documents; and

o With the assistance of our in-house valuation specialists:

(i) assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i) testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i) assessing the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BEETEE(E)

Key Audit Matter
BERESE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRPRBHERPNMEERRETSE

Impairment of loan and other receivables
Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has loan and other
receivables with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$91,003,000. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year in respect
of the Group’s loan and other receivables amounted to
approximately HK$370,000.

Loss allowance for loan and other receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the 12 months ECL to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit loss
experience, ageing of overdue loan and other receivables,
borrowers’ repayment history and borrowers’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement. The management engaged a
qualified external valuers to assist in the assessment.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
balance involved and the significant accounting judgements
and estimates required in assessing the loss allowance for
impairment of loan and other receivables.
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Our procedures included:

° Obtaining and examining the assessment report of ECL
of loan and other receivables prepared by the external
valuer engaged by the Group;

o Assessing the external valuers’ qualifications, experience
and expertise, and considering their objectivity and
independence;

o Evaluating management’s assessment of whether there
was a significant increase in credit risk on the loan and
other receivables since initial recognition; and

° With the assistance of our in-house valuation specialists:

(i)  assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model used by the Group;

(i)  testing inputs to the model to market data;

(i) assessing the appropriateness of forward-looking
adjustments to the model; and

(iv)  testing the calculation of the ECL provisions.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEEMRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2021

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEERk

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12 8318 HEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Re-presented)
(&=751)
Continuing operations BESEEK

Revenue WA 8 79,525 75,259
Cost of sales SHEE R A (36,160) (39,223)
Gross profit EF 43,365 36,036
Other income Heplg A 9 6,713 16,318
Other gains and losses, net Hep et & B85 10 (108) (19,282)
Distribution costs 7 $HRK AR (509) (938)

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables ‘& 5 & U k8 & E At & U 5108
KB EEE (622) (6,266)
Administrative expenses ITHAX (31,301) (42,733)
Other operating expenses H iR (2,354) (2,944)
Profit/(loss) from operations LR (E8) 15,184 (19,809)
Finance costs B E A 1 (958) (2,176)
Impairment of goodwill PEERE 21 - (2,830)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment M - RS R ERE 19 - (12,089)
Profit/(loss) before tax BAER,(BA) 14,226 (36,904)
Income tax expense st i 12 (4,439) (1,815)

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing BERKEEBMBERNERN

operations (&518) 9,787 (38,719)
Discontinued operations BRIEEE K
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued BRI EEEEEFEA
operations @A, (E1R) 16 6,755 (9,154)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREFN,(EE) 13 16,542 (47,873)
JEREREEAR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FATT
(Re-presented)
(ggE71)
Attributable to: BTN A B4 :
Equity shareholders of the Company RA AR 15,053 (47,873)
Non-controlling interests IR RS 1,489 -
16,542 (47,873)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER(FHE) 18
From continuing and discontinued operations REFFE R BRI T
Basic (HK$ per share) BER(ERAT) 0.006 (0.020)
Diluted (HK$ per share) BB (R T) 0.006 (0.020)
From continuing operations REFECEER
Basic (HK$ per share) HAR(FRETT) 0.004 (0.016)
Diluted (HK$ per share) 5 (gRET) 0.004 (0.016)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AERaREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE202090 128318 L5

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
(Re-presented)
(gg&E51)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREFN,(EE) 16,542 (47,873)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hib2mEWE(BE) :
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: Al E PR B A -
Exchange differences on translating foreign MEIBIME S FTEERIEN 258
operations 50,663 (14,329)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss 3482 H & 5 INE & 1825 HOFE 3 =58
on disposal of foreign operations 6,425 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEKE (EBE) - NRFHE
for the year, net of tax 57,088 (14,329)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEWRE (FE)EHE
for the year 73,630 (62,202)
Attributable to: BN AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company A AR R 69,953 (62,202)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR A 3,677 =
73,630 (62,202)
JEREREEAR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

At 31 December 2020
#2020 12831H

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HE KRR 19 296,245 401,534
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20 25,246 46,069
Goodwill SRS 21 - =
Intangible assets mAE 22 780 1,121
Other non-current assets HEtIEmEEE 1,897 2,050
Contract assets BHEE 26 18,152 59,398
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE 33 1,368 2,183
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 343,688 512,355
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through RARBEEEREZSETA
profit or loss (“FVTPL") EHBEE(UARBEMZ
BE#Z#H AZHEREDH
CHEE 27 1,442 1,696
Inventories & 24 7,692 62,863
Trade and other receivables B 5 e GRIA K& E A R U R IE 25 190,960 238,312
Current tax assets BIHRRLIB & B 3,172 2,977
Bank and cash balances SR1T RIS &8k 28 326,060 165,438
Total current assets RBEEHE 529,326 471,286
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables 2 5 FRIE R E M E FRIE 35 21,290 107,311
Contract liabilities BHEE 36 115 1,950
Lease liabilities HEBRE 37 1,067 2,708
Bank borrowings RITER 32 - 69,902
Deferred government grants iR IE U 6 B 34 280 262
Current tax liabilities BIEfIBE & E 9,969 7,926
Total current liabilities HBEEARE 32,721 190,059
Net current assets REEETHE 496,605 281,227
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 840,293 793,582

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBRRE

At 31 December 2020
202012 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 37 14,847 16,203
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIESE 33 6,549 5,790
Deferred government grants RAETR T4 B 34 6,055 5,938
Total non-current liabilities EREBEBELE 27,451 27,931
NET ASSETS BEE 812,842 765,651
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR #HE
Share capital [N 29 6,085 6,085
Reserves G 31 806,757 759,566
Total equity fEREE 812,842 765,651

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and are signed on ~ HEF & 2021F3 831 BHLEL A THIATHRE

its behalf by: BEEREE:
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
BER BER

JERZEREBERAR 89
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEeEnBER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE20209012A31BLFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
ARERREL

Capital Share-based Non-

Share Share  Treasury ~ redemption Capital ~ Statutory ~ payments  Exchange  Retained Sub- controlling Total

Note capital ~ premium shares [GE reserve reserve reserve reserve profits total  interests equity
#& WRiRER
it B RBEE  EERG  RORE KRR AERE  NRORE ENRE  RERA Mt FERER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T Tin Tin : Thn y T Tin

At 1 January 2019 201951518 6,138 605,502 = = 68,665 42,094 17,363 (49,958) 141,503 831,307 - 831,307
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - - - (14329) (47.873) (62,202) - (62,202)
Repurchase of shares - - (4,291) - - - - - - (4291) - (4,291)
Cancellation of shares 9 (53) (4.291) 4291 5 - - - - - - - -
Share-based payments 3 - - - - - - 837 - - 837 - 837
Appropriation to statutory resenve - - - - - 2,185 - - (2,185) - - -
Changes in equity for the year ERiEEEY (53) 4,291) - 5 - 2,185 837 (14,329) (50,058) (65,656) - (65,656)
At 31 December 2019 12019128318 6,085 601,211 - 5 68,665 44219 18,200 (64,287) 91,445 765,651 - 765,651
At1 January 2020 R2020£1517 6,085 601,211 = 53 68,665 4219 18,200 (64,287) 91,445 765,651 = 765,651
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2ENEEE - - - - - - - 54,900 15,053 69,953 367 13,630
Share-ased payments WRAEERGRA ] - - - - - - 63 - - 8 - 3]
Lapse of share options ERERH - - - - - - (3,035) - 3,035 - - -
Appropriaion totatutory resene.  SHEEERRE - - - - - 1730 = = (1,730) = = =
Partil disposal of a subsidiary FAHE-BNAEHEL

without loss of control AT 390) - - - - - - - - 1516 1516 28,108 29624
Disposal of subsidaries HENEAT ) - - - - - - - - - - () (3178))
Transfer upon disposal of subsidiaries  E EMBAERER = = = = - e = = 11,831 = = =
Diend pad Bfiks - - - - - - - -3 ) T
Changes in equity for the year EhERED - - - - - (10,101) (29m) 54,900 5,364 47,191 - 47,191
At 31 December 2020 2020128318 6,085 601,211 - 53 68,665 34178 15,228 (9.387) 96,809 812,842 - 812,802

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12 8318 HEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RETHFERTRE

2020
20205

HK$'000

TR

2019
20194
HK$'000
FH&T

Profit/(loss) before tax BintaF, (E8)
Continuing operations FREBIC S 2T 14,226 (36,904)
Discontinued operations RIS 16 6,144 (7,188)
20,370 (44,092)
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Impairment of goodwill EERE 21 - 2,830
Impairment of property, plant and equipment Y% - B REERE 19 - 12,089
Write off of property, plant and equipment YIZ - BB KRR E M 182 661
Allowance for inventories FERE - 319
Allowance for trade and other receivables, net & 5 fE U ZRIE K H b fE UL
SRIBRHE TR 11,137 5,911
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries i E B A AR Es1E 16 3,666 -
Amortisation of deferred government grants A R e B 34 (264) (213)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 22 389 550
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% « E &R EITE 19 31,898 40,890
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 20 3,977 4,267
Finance costs B A 3,831 7,229
Dividend income from equity securities A& AN & SR RR B A - (13,617)
Interest income B WA (5,499) (2,130)
Net realised and unrealised loss on investment A ANZEAIZEHNE IR N
in equity securities REIRFEE 254 18,566
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE - BKE RERER
plant and equipment Was (253) (25)
Equity settled share-based payments AR A E LA 7R B Y
XA+ 63 837
Operating profit before working capital changes &iE& & & &)FIRAELE 69,751 34,072
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEGEM), SR (25,895) 37,560
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables & 5 & Uz 18 K H i fE LU
KBOEM), SR (42,614) 29,329
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERD, (M) 41,246 (19,920)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets ~ E A IERBEER L~
(1) 153 (670)
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL IAREE= B EE 5T
AEHEENEmEE
Hd - 8,198
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables & 5 (s 58 K H At fE f<f
RIEE N, CRD) 67,663 (9,484)
Decrease in contract liabilities axamEmd (687) (235)
Increase in deferred government grants IR AETS T4 Bh3E hn = 6,504
Cash generated from operations KEEBMERE 109,617 85,354
Dividend income from equity securities received 2 YRR TE F A AL B UL - 356
Income taxes paid ETFTER (3,043) (2,723)
Income taxes refunded BIRFTISH 1,079 2,201
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE (1,238) (1,451)
Net cash generated from operating activities EIREFTSIREIFRE 106,415 83,737
JEREREEAR A A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

2020
20205

HK$°000
TExT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES #®BEIZHFMERSHKE

2019
20194
HK$'000
FH&T

Disposal of subsidiaries o EFTE A Al 39(a) 74,143 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, BEYXE  BERERERER

intangible assets BE (4,786) (4,825)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE RBRENFTS

plant and equipment FIE 357 547
Payments for right-of-use assets RS ERNT = (286)
Decrease in restricted cash ZREIE2RD = 8,881
Interest received EHFIE 5,499 837
Net cash generated from investing activities HEEBMER ST 75,213 5,154
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BiEEEfIERERE
Bank borrowings raised HERITER 24,603 70,717
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIETER (72,197) (159,073)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRO AR (2,948) (3,001)
Repurchase of shares Bl = (4,291)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders BN TARRIERRERARE

of the Company (24,341) -
Interest paid BEAFLE (2,593) (5,778)
Proceeds from partial disposal of a subsidiary B9 S — A 2 AR AE 6 B

without loss of control =YNS i 5O 39(b) 29,624 =
Net cash used in financing activities REE RS2 358 (47,852) (101,426)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BHeRESZEERE M

CASH EQUIVALENTS OmA) 38 133,776 (12,535)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE)TE 26,846 (7,413)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MBE1BNEER

1 JANUARY REEEER 165,438 185,386
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R12A31HHNRER

31 DECEMBER RE&ZEER 326,060 165,438
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND RERBSZEEBOM

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE A 326,060 165,438

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The address
of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is Unit 1903, 19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18
Fenwick Street, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 13 July 2012.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”), is the immediate and ultimate parent and Mr. Guo
Yumin, a director of the Company, is the ultimate controlling party
of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

e PR HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE202090 128318 L5

—REH

IEZRZEAR R B AR A F ([ ARAF 1) R20124F2
R24BRBHERSENIE22E A F)E(1961
FEIFED  Riga RIEFT ) ERESRST
MRZR—KERRERAA - RAAKRE
M@ AR B AT ANEE ] o AN & H) & 5
= B7 b 5 A Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands ° N2 )£ Z & ¥ 2 AHEE
FH A 185 ERF L 191E1903F - AR AR
HE2012F7A13EEREEBERZMER
AR([BERRFT ) EMR LT -

RRBR—FEREERAF - EMBARNE
R EBEIINERE M B HRRME23

ARBEZRR @ IBREEZERAR AR (RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group'’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material
that states “information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality depends
on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually
or in combination with other information, in the context of
the financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In addition,
the amendments introduce an optional “concentration test”
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is an asset rather than business
acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2020. The application of the amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements as similar
conclusion would have been reached without applying the
optional concentration test.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAHFITIREBITEEMBEREEAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) (#&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) B MEME R RERBHFET REHE
effective A B BMBHREER
The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs that REBIWEERTMAEBMHBEHERR
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial 20204F 1 A1 B FA & B B 2 A A9 3
year beginning 1 January 2020. These new and revised A RAMIERT BB E SR o AIHZEAAR
HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant to the SEE R RS BB IR ELE
Group: AIBFETYFIA

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

EUT Az %
RIRE AR AR
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and 1 January 2021
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
EEMGIREERER - BEGEAIFE395% - BEMBHREEAETR 2021F1A1H
BAVBIREERFA5 REBAGEHRELERNE 1655 (BFTAR) 2 FIREAERE — F2RER
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
ERPBMEERNFE165E(BFTA) ZCOVID- 198 =R 20206 H1H
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BB IR EERIZE 35 (BT AR ) 2 L& MRS 2 f2at 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
BEGERE165F (BRIA) 2 W% - BB LRE - (EBTEREA 2 TSI 20221 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BEREGTERIEITR (BRI A) 2 BEEHN —BITE KA 20221 H1H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BB HRE2ER2018F 20205 2 FE okt 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023
EREGERE 1R (EFIAR) 2 BB ERRESIERE 2023F1H1H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REEEEEZEE] RN EATEEIR
what the impact of these amendments and new standards FERBFEMERTE - HEBRIEBHEA
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it o BRAZEERTN KA e E AR S ISR

has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a REXEEATE -
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve
relating to that subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and equity shareholders of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity shareholders of the Company.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, unless
the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020F 12831815 E
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. FE&HBE(E)
(b) Business combination and goodwill (b) EXEHEEE

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020F 12831 B IEFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. TFEE:HBE(E)
() Foreign currency translation (continued) () HEBmEGE)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (iii) #EREZ2BE

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Solar power plants 20 years
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Office equipment and others 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Yacht 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Leases (continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets related to interests
in leasehold land where the interest in the land is held
as inventory are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with Note 4(i).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Leases (continued)
(i) The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

(ii) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(h) Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in Note
4(aa) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.

Properties under development and held for
sale

Properties for sale under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
include the acquisition cost of interest in leasehold land,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other
direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price, less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties
held for sale at the then carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(k)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss.
Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Discontinued operations (continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducing all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax (“VAT") or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of manufactured goods is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific location (delivery) and accepted
by the customer. Following delivery and acceptance,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the
goods are delivered to and accepted by the customer
as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is
recognised when control of the properties are
transferred, being when the construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the
properties have been delivered, which is the point in
time when the customer has the ability to direct the
use of the property and obtain substantially all of the
remain benefits of the property. Revenue from sale of
properties excludes business tax and other sales related
taxes and is after deduction of any discounts allowed.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
contract liabilities.

Sales of electricity

Revenue from sale of electricity is recognised in the
accounting period when electricity is generated and
supplied to the provincial power grid. Revenue excludes
VAT or other sales taxes.

Operation revenue of cloud platforms

Operation revenue of cloud platforms is recognised
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
of the asset.

(t) Employee benefits

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employments schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(t) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and vest
fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are members of central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments.
The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the
central pension schemes to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of the Group. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the central
pension schemes is to meet the required contributions
under the schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Share-based payments

(v)

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or, if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs (continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Taxation (continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual Group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax expense. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC
enterprise income tax purposes.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is
being measured.
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e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit
or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment.

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contracts assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s core
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial

instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual

cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. FESEBE(E)
(aa) ERMEERESHNEERE(E)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there are no
past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ab) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(ac)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with below):

(a)

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity

Tariff adjustments represent subsidy received and receivable
from the government authorities in respect of the Group's
solar power generation business.

In August 2013, the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC released the New Tariff Notice to
launch a new subsidising policy for distributed solar power
plants and adjusted benchmark on-grid price for electricity
generated by centralised solar power plants (which are
known as the ground solar plants).

Pursuant to the New Tariff Notice, a set of standardised
procedures for the settlement of the tariff subsidy has come
into force since 2013 and approvals for the registration in the
Catalogue on a project-by-project basis are required before
the allocation of funds to the state grid companies, which
then would make settlement to the Group.

Tariff adjustments of approximately HK$32,214,000 (2019:
HK$35,495,000) recognised for the year ended 31 December
2020 are included in the sales of electricity as disclosed
in Note 8 and are recognised based on management
judgement that all of the Group’s operating power plants
have qualified for, and have met all the requirements and
conditions as required based on the prevailing nationwide
government policies on renewable energy for solar power
plants. Cumulative amount of tariff receivables relating to
power plants yet to register in the Catalogue amounting
to approximately HK$18,152,000 (2019: HK$59,398,000)
remains outstanding as at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)
Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

Revenue recognition on tariff adjustments on sales of
electricity (continued)

In making their judgement, the Directors, taking into account
the legal opinion as advised by the Group’s legal advisor,
considered that all of the Group’s solar power plants currently
in operation have met the requirements and conditions as
stipulated in the New Tariff Notice for the entitlement of the
tariff adjustments when the electricity was delivered on grid.

The Directors are confident that all of the Group’s operating
power plants were able to be registered in the Catalogue in
due course and the accrued revenue on tariff subsidy are fully
recoverable but only subject to timing of allocation of funds
from the government, after considering that there are no bad
debt experiences with the state grid companies in the past
and the tariff subsidy is fully funded by the PRC government.

Legal titles of certain buildings

As stated in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
the titles of certain buildings related to a production plant
acquired from a third party were not transferred to the
Group as at 31 December 2020. Despite the fact that the
Group has not obtained the relevant legal titles, the directors
determined to recognise those buildings as property, plant
and equipment, on the grounds that they expect the transfer
of legal titles in future should have no major difficulties and
the Group is in substance controlling those buildings.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets.
An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In
assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative and
quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are discussed below:

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$296,245,000
(2019: HK$401,534,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, income tax of approximately HK$4,439,000 (2019:
HK$1,815,000) was charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated profit from continuing operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(9]

(d)

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The carrying amount of goodwill
at the end of the reporting period was approximately HK$Nil
(2019: HKS$Nil) after an impairment loss of approximately
HK$Nil (2019: HK$2,830,000) was recognised during the
year. Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided
in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020
were HK$296,245,000 (2019: HK$401,534,000) and
HK$25,246,000 (2019: HK$46,069,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

()

Impairment of trade and other receivables and contract
assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade and other receivables
and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade and
other receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables and contract assets is HK$207,959,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$4,628,000) (2019:
HK$294,211,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$5,726,000)).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories and net
realisable value of inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
Allowance for slow-moving inventories amounted to HK$Nil
(2019: HK$319,000) was made for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer’s demand and competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates
by the end of each reporting period.
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A MBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk

(b)

as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in equity securities. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on the
Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2019: 10%) higher/lower,
profit/loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2020
would increase/decrease (2019: decrease/increase) by
approximately HK$140,000 (2019: HK$170,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(9)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade and
other receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject
to the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due ranging from 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.

Based on the track record of regular repayment of receivables
from sales of electricity and that settlement of tariff
adjustment receivables is in accordance with the prevailing
government policies, all trade receivables and contract
assets from sales of electricity, including tariff adjustment
receivables, are expected to be recoverable and the ECL
provision on contract assets is considered to be insignificant.
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FEMBHRERMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 128318 LFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. TREREMEE(E)
(c) Credit risk (continued) () EERKE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) ESEVRREREGHNEE (H)
The following table provides information about the Group's TRIBHABBAA S EEREERR RTEH
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and EEBEENER - B1ER20205F12 431
contract assets, as at 31 December 2020: BRE SEUGRIERAELHEE
2020
20204
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIBEE HARHEE EiaRE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FExT FHExT
Current (not past due) BPEA (438 50 0.23% 116,839 268
More than 3 months past due w AR E3ME A 81.21% 2,049 1,664
118,888 1,932

2019
20194
Expected  Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

TRHAE IR R HARE(E EEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% THT FHET

Current (not past due) BNEA (W &= H0 ) 0.06% 186,964 112
Less than 1 month past due #0 B P — 1 A 0.21% 22,625 48
1 to 3 months past due w1 = 31E A 0.33% 3,071 10
More than 3 months past due 60 Bt A 3 1R A 31.60% 6,355 2,008
219,015 2,178
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience FEHBEXRBASFNERBELR
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect Ho hFhESRUARN(ZESEEE
differences between economic conditions during the period HRWER ) SERRZER « B AR KA
over which the historic data has been collected, current & B 3 R WOR IR TE B B AR B AR R 2
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions over ER - MINATIEE o

the expected lives of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(9)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during

the year is as follows:

6.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

TR EE (&)
(o FEERE(E)
HEZBYHERENEE (F)

FREMEZRUFABERBETRNE
BT

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$°000 HK$'000

THT T

At 1 January ®W1A18 2,178 5,066
Impairment losses recognised for the year REEERREERE 10,905 6.425
Amounts written off during the year REEMIEESEE (1,874) (6,491)
Reversals B El (205) (2,769)
Disposal of subsidiaries o E T A Al (9,192) =
Exchange differences PE N =58 120 (53)
At 31 December ®12A31H 1,932 2,178

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade receivables contributed to the decrease in
the loss allowance during 2020:

- a write-off of trade receivables with a gross carrying
amount of HK$1,874,000 resulted in a decrease in loss
allowance of HK$1,874,000.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 97.1% (2019:
48.1%) and 98.6% (2019: 90.7%) of total trade receivables
and contract assets was due from the Group’s largest trade
receivables and contract assets and the five largest trade
receivables and contract assets respectively.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. SEIEMREE(E)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERB(E)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost include other receivables.

Other receivables are considered to have low credit risk,
and the loss allowance recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12-month expected losses. These
instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

For the ECL assessment of loan receivable, the risk of
default of the loan receivable is considered low as there is
no information indicating that the loan receivable had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
thus no impairment loss is recognised.

Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets at
amortised cost during the year is as follows:

BRBHERATE2EREE
REHERAGTEZ eREEREEMRK

O -

Htt U BHRRREBERENEER
B o Bt - REIRERNBERERR
REANESRER - EZETAEERE
HE KRR BET ARG RARENERE
HAETAMNREDRERSE - RIERR
REEERR -

SEKESNEREEBIEFEME @ &
WERERORBERASRE - REA/IL
BERBRERERB VS ERAREE
R FEEIR A0 - B I AR AR E R

1|

AREERBER A B2 S HEERTER
BHEBIT -

Loan and other
receivables

FE W R

AR
HK$'000
FHT

At 1 January 2019 72019451 18 1,345
Impairment losses recognised for the year AEEHERRERE 2,255
Exchange differences ME =R (52)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 H31H 3,548
Impairment losses recognised for the year NEEERREREE 498
Reversals [l (61)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEB AR (1,376)
Exchange differences EH =5 87
At 31 December 2020 742020412 A318 2,696

The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to equity
investments that are measured at FVTPL as these equity
investments are held by securities broker. The maximum
exposure at the end of the reporting period is the carrying
amount of these investments of HK$1,442,000 (2019:
HK$1,696,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk

(e)

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as
follows:

Less than

1 year or
on demand
DPIE
HIRER
HK$'000
BT

At 31 December 2020 j42020%12H31H
Trade and other payables & 5 &< 78 &

H A fEATROE 21,290
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,027
At 31 December 2019 72019124311
Trade and other payables & 5 & {718 &

Hfth fE T IR 107,311
Bank borrowings RITER 71,660
Lease liabilities HEGAE 3,880

Interest rate risk
The Group's loan receivable bears interest at fixed interest

rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's bank deposits bear interest at variable rates that
vary with the then prevailing market condition.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

6. EREREEE)

(d)

Between
1 and
PACEL

1EZ 26
HK$'000
FHT

1,290

2,618

(e)

RBETER

AEE 2 BRRAE R B AT RIBEHZR
BESHK - EMERASEERRHHR
SREARNEEMEBREHANRDES

K -

RIEAEEIITESRAE 2 AHARRE
BemELIBAOHMT -

Between
2 and
5 years

Over
5 years Total
2FE5F
HK$'000
TET

5& 5 F
HK$'000
FAT

&t
HK$’'000
FH7

= = 21,290

4,122 20,824 28,263

= = 107,311

= = 71,660

4,469 20,743 31,710
==k

AEBEMEKREFREEMEGTE
It AXAREEFEREBRBAR

REE MR TF R IRBE E RER T E L
HF B RETR -

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRERMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A318IEFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. SREMEE(E)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at (f) 2020512A31BMNERMIESSE

31 December 2020

2020
2020

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAET

HK$'000
TR

TREE :

Financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL — Held for trading NAREBENEEEEZSH:TAE

HERNEmEE —HIFER 1,442 1,696
Financial assets measured at amortised cost ~ LABESERK AT S S REEE 515,867 400,251
Financial liabilities: SEMEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost D SEN AT ENSRIBE 21,290 177,213

(g) Fair values (90 2RrfEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement

of financial position approximate their respective fair values. BEHEE
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AREESE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or AREEEMEREE CENRGEA8BEEF
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market TR PEESEE KR SEZEE FESYNNE

participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of o TYXWEFBAANBAEBLRAZSNALE
B BEtEAREENGBEERAERL

D R={EH :

fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

Level 1 inputs: F-ERBAE: AREAREARSE A

138

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December

2020:

Description

i

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL

— Listed equity securities

EWMEE -
ARAEBEFEAESE
FEAE BB TR
BE

— B EMBRARE

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

D RBEETEHE)

AEENBRSERBEEFAE KH 3
FEOER= AR RBARELER

(@) HM2020F12A31HARBEBHNEL
WEWT :

Fair value measurements using:

DNABEREFNER :

Level 1
E—ER
HK$'000

TET

Level 2
EER
HK$'000

FHET

Level 3
E=ER
HK$'000

THET

1,442

Total
&5t
2020
20204
HK$'000
FEx

1,442

Description

it

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL

— Listed equity securities

Qﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ@
AAAEHEEN SR
BE

— B EMBAE

Fair value measurements using:

A

AN =

Level 1
F—ER
HK$'000

FABT

1,696

EBEFERMEM :

Level 2
—E#
HK$'000
THAT

Level 3
FZER
HK$'000

BT

Total
At
2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

1,696

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the instruments are included in level
3. The listed equity securities were transferred from level 1
to level 3 due to suspension of trading of such securities in
the relevant stock exchange. The fair value was referenced
to latest transaction price with an adjustment of discount for
lack of marketability and market multiple.

i —JHSk ZIHE R A BB L IFERAERT
HEE W&Iﬁﬁk% B - AN EHEE
FRIEABERIFEREER B LWRAE
FHRE-ERBAZ=ER - EAREESE
H R AEME - WHEERZ Mg me it &
%5 5 i F8 BT ©

JERZEREBERAR
2020F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AREBEFEE)
(b)  Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on by WREF=ZELREANBETENEEY
Level 3: iR -

Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAREBEFEEHEEHTAEH

BRENERMEE
Description 2020 2019
i pu 2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
At 1 January M1ATR - -
Transfer from level 1 BE—EREA 1,696 -
Total losses recognised in profit or loss (#) I8z ERR 2 EBAEZE#) (254) =
At 31 December M12A8318 1,442 =

(#) Include gains or losses for assets held HBATREHARATIFE EREE K

at end of reporting period BB AR (254) =
The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss are MRS RO R S E B AR NGE1E
presented in other gains and losses in the consolidated AR E M REE 25 -

statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(0

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2020:

The Group's financial manager is responsible for the fair value

measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.

The financial manager reports directly to the Board of

Directors for these fair value measurements. Discussions of

valuation processes and results are held between the financial

manager and the Board of Directors at least twice a year.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

- discount for lack of marketability

- market multiple

Level 3 fair value measurements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

7. DREESEGE)

()

REEF2020F12 A31BETANEE
STEAMERANGERR - MERITEREA
BURIRFTELT ¢

AEENABRERBETHERENE
SKHMEERBEAAEEE  BEF=
BRARBENE WBEKEERAES
SERZSAABEE - MBKEHERE
EggFR BTG RAMERRF RS
RITHEH R ©

FZBRAAEBEAEFMAZIEZTATE

REAEEER -

- AR = mEh i mBaIR

- THEHR

FZEBRAANEBEE

Effect on
fair value
Valuation Unobservable for increase of
Description technique inputs inputs 2020
LIPNI=REY)IE)
fh{E i TABEGEAE DNABEENEE 20204
HK$'000
THET
Listed equity securities Market approach Discount for lack of ~ 20.6% Decrease 1,442
classified as financial marketability
assets at FVTPL
Market multiple 7.8%-9.1% Increase
DER/UAABESE WHE Ez metEmatia  20.6% e 1,442
BEZH:t AE 818
mEREEND k
TR B M5 EE 7.8%-9.1% 3N
JERZREBER D E

2020F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARZDH®HE
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (@) WA#HD
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by REEERIRBE DN RFEFELE
major products or service line for the year from continuing XBEPEHNMRAMD AT

operations is as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 %  HK$'000
FTET TAT

Revenue from contracts with  BEBHEHREEL
customers within the scope F155EEEARRE
of HKFRS 15 EFEHHBA

Disaggregated by major products &2 F B Fak IR

or service lines Fibay
Sales of sub-processing HE T HEERE

cigarette films 5,127 6% 7,508 10%
Properties development and 23R R ABRA AR S

related services 21,424 27% 8,778 12%
Generation of photovoltaic power  Y{K3£E 52,974 67% 54,695 73%
Cloud-related business TR - - 4,278 5%
Total S=t 79,525 100% 75,259 100%

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services over time and at a point in time in the following
major product lines and geographical regions:

For the year ended Sales of sub-processing  Properties development

31 December cigarette films and related services

BENANALEE HEMIEEER VELEGE L
2020 2019 2020

205 20198 2020F
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tén  TEr  TEn

Primary geographical market TEBEH

2019
20195
HK$'000
o

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

WA K7 P& ()
(a) WA#Z (&)

AEENTIIEBER KGR EBERE
CEGAEEA 3Ry UNE

Generation of Cloud-related
photovoltaic power business Total
EREE XK CH
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
pIv}:3 0198 20208 0198 20205 19F
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn  TET  TEn BT TR TEn

Mainland China HERL 5127 7508 21424 8778 52,974 54,695 - 4278 79,525 75,259
Timing of revenue recognition WABREE
Products transferred at EniE-HKEG

apoint in time &7 5127 7508 21,404 8778 - = - - 26551 16,286
Products and services EmRIRTBERE

transferred over time 14 - - - - 52,974 54,695 - 4278 52,974 58973
Total ait 5127 758 21,44 8778 52914 54695 - 48 1955 75259

(b) Segment reporting

The Group has four operating segments together formed the
continuing operations as follows:

o Sales of sub-processing cigarette films: this segment
engages in trading of sub-processing cigarette films;

o Properties development and related services: this
segment engages in development and sales of
properties and providing property management
services;

off

(b) 7&K

AR SR B H RIAR AR B AR 2 S 75 O I {4
DEPAT

=

Fal

HEMTIEESER : thy BMEEM
TR EERER

o MEBRIMABIRG Lo HER
NHEME LR R E R

JERZEREBERAR
2020F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
23 T EL e

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

o Generation of photovoltaic power: this segment
engages in generating and sales of electricity; and

o Cloud-related business: this segment engaged in
provision of development of cloud computing related
software, outsourcing cloud platforms and providing
cloud computing solutions and related services.

The manufacturing and sales of BOPP films operations were
discontinued in the current year. The segment information
reported does not include any amounts for these discontinued
operations, which are described in more detail in Note 16.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires different
technology and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include unallocated head office and corporate expenses, net
realised and unrealised loss on investment in equity securities,
dividend income from equity securities and impairment of
unallocated other receivables. Segment assets do not include
equity securities and unallocated head office and corporate
assets. Segment liabilities do not include unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8.

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

Information about operating segment profit or loss,

assets and liabilities from continuing operations:

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

WA K7 P& ()

(b)

7 R (&)

() 2WxE BEREE

BREEE
BEMABZEMWMT :

PR}

L

BEEE BB

Sales of sub-processing  Properties development Generation of Cloud-related
cigarette films and related services photovoltaic power business Total
HENIEETR NELRRABRE e Aif
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20195 20205 0195 20205 20195 20205 20195 20205 20198
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tén BT T#n BT Tén BT TEn ThL TR ThT
Year ended 31 December ~ EZ12A31R1E
EE
Revenue fromexternal ~~ REANBEFMA
customers 5127 7,508 21,424 8,778 52,974 54,695 - 4278 79,525 75,259
Reportable segment gross e 423
profit/(loss) £/(28) 1,087 2,087 8,578 (1,090) 33,700 33,35% = 1,683 43,365 36,036
Reportable segment  WEFAHHA
profit/(loss) before tax 37/ (&) (8665)  (14303) 8850  (5217) 26611 17,297 35) (12629 26561 (14852
Interest income from bank ~ $47%30IS
deposits N 218 54 439 250 30 13 33 2 720 344
Interest expense 8 2 1299 - = 858 877 - = 878 2176
Depreciation and EA#S
amortisation 1,982 3,035 56 206 16,3% 16,528 133 1420 18,567 21,189
Other material non-cash £t EAFRE
items; B
Impairment of tradeand 5B IE&
other receivables AR
A = - 30 3,53 52 - - 1432 622 4,966
Impaiment of goodwil ~ EEHIE - - - - - - - 2830 - 2830
Impairment of property, 1%~ BER
plant and equipment B - 5015 - - - - - 7,074 - 1208
As at 31 December MM2A318
Reportable segment assets TR FEE 65,874 73120 252024 190751 437,786 401,567 24,536 909 780220 674,530
Additions to non-current  FRFEREHS B
segment assetsduring ~ EEMEE
the year 415 1,848 = - 6 38% = - o 5,744
Reportable segment  WEHABERE
liabilities 28713 35,334 1,547 10370 24,675 23391 2,956 4,484 58,051 73,579
JEREREEAR A A

2020F G 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WARSIPIHRE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2 E®E (&)
(i) Reconciliations of segment profit or loss from (i) BEKCEEK s BEANREE
continuing operations HER

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Profit/(loss) w=wAL(EE)

Reportable segment profit/(loss) before tax ] Bk 2 FE AT A~

(E8) 26,561 (14,852)
Net realised and unrealised loss on RABHIZEHE FIR R
investment in equity securities AREIRHEE (254) (18,566)
Dividend income from equity securities RARFE HF AR EMA - 13,617
Impairment of unallocated other receivables &% At E b fE UK FUB BB = (1,300)
Unallocated head office and corporate R BLARFBA A A
expenses X (12,081) (15,803)

Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax from — #HELL & EE4R A AT
continuing operations wAl (E18) 14,226 (36,904)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8.

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities

Assets

BE

(iii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

WA K7 P& ()
(b) ZEBwE (&)
SBEERBEHR

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
T

HK$°000
TR

Total assets of reportable segments AR DI EEEE 780,220 674,530
Assets relating to discontinued operations R AR |FCEE TSGR EE = 291,897
Equity securities IR FH 1,442 1,696
Unallocated head office and ROBHLFABEE

corporate assets 91,352 15,518
Consolidated total assets IrE BEBTE 873,014 983,641
Liabilities =N
Total liabilities of reportable segments AR EPE EAERE 58,051 73,579
Liabilities relating to discontinued PRI EXBERNBE

operations = 144,259
Unallocated head office and ROMBHLF B EE

corporate liabilities 2,121 152
Consolidated total liabilities e BEEE 60,172 217,990
Geographic information (iv) HEEHR

No geographic information from continuing operations
is presented as the revenue, contribution to operating
results, assets and liabilities of the Group are
attributable to operating activities which are carried

out or originated principally in the PRC including Hong

Kong.

HAREENRA « HELEEN
BE - BERAEHRBEREER
PR (BIEES) TR RS
JEB) MR 2RIGECEETD
[z &R

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 8. WARSIPIHRE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2 E®E (&)
(v) Revenue from major customers (v) REXTEZFFHRA
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FT
Segment of properties development W E R KBRS 5 8D
and related services
Customer A EYSL 18,744 =
Segment of generation of HIRFEB D E
photovoltaic power
Customer B BRZ 52,974 54,695
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HflA
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET T
Continuing operations BEREER
Dividend income from equity securities IR AR FH AR B UA - 13,617
Government grants (Note (i) ERAT 48 B (PR EE()) 527 87
Amortisation of deferred government grants TR AE TS T H7f B 8 (PR 7E34)

(Note 34) 264 213
Interest income on bank deposits RTINS 720 347
Loan interest income BRHF BUA 4,743 1,665
Rental income A2 UA - 5
Sales of scrap materials i S R - 3
Sundry income IR 459 381

6,713 16,318
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10.

11.

OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Note: (i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

During the year, the Group recognised government grants

of HK$269,000 (2019: HK$Nil) in respect of COVID-19
related subsidies relates to Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong government. Government grants
of HK$258,000 (2019: HK$87,000) mainly related to the
subsidy received from the local government authority for the

achievements of the Group.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Continuing operations
Gain on disposal of property,

10.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

H WA ()

MiE - () FRN - AEERRETBRFRERNR
PET A REHCOVID-1918 B8 8 BL U
##81269,000/ 7T (20194 : THIT) °
R FF#B)258,000/8 7T (20194 : 87,000
B EEEMENEBK A A K
FFREURER 2 /B ©

Htt Wz & 5518 8

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

HK$"000
TR

<

HEWE - BB KRR ERER

plant and equipment 304 -
Write off of property, plant and equipment Y% - B KR (120) (88)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) bE R Mz (B8 ) 55 117 (628)
Net realised and unrealised loss on investment ~ FIANEHILEMD BIH N
in equity securities REIR SR (254) (18,566)
Others At (155) =
(108) (19,282)
FINANCE COSTS 1. BERAK

2020
2020

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAET

HK$°000
TR

Continuing operations HEREER

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 20) HEaFENF M (HFF20) 942 959

Interest on bank borrowings RITE TS 16 1,217

Total borrowing costs BEEKA BT 958 2,176
JEREREEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been recognised in
profit or loss as following:

Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax

12. FAEBiXXH
RS ECS LSRN ERNERNT

BIEATH IR — R B D PATS TR

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
FBT

HK$000
TERT

Provision for the year REFEHRHE 3,252 3,745
Overprovision in prior years BT F S B (375) (1,493)
2,877 2,252

LAT THIRET 957 118
Deferred tax PEIERLIE 605 (555)
4,439 1,815

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit derived in Hong Kong during
the year (2019: Nil).

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law") which became effective on
1 January 2008 and the PRC's statutory Corporate Income
Tax rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to advanced
technology enterprises established in the PRC, Jiangsu
Sheen Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd. is subject to PRC
corporate income tax at a preferential tax rate of 15% for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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(ii)

(iii)

BB SRS REABEBRA SR
) - AEERER S R ERE ST
RSB -

WERBENSHIELEE  BALEHE
AEEREBLEERDEN (20195

7).

M2007F3R16H ' F+HEZBEARKE
AEFRARDEERBB(REARKLMN
BZEMEBUENFBIE]) - KR20084F
TATREMR - FEEATREMBHRES
25% ©

AR 4538 B PATE AR B S A s B T b /9
EEER  IENEREAR AR AR
HZE2020F 12 A3 B L FEREEH X
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(continued)

Entities engaged in qualified power generating projects,
are eligible for a corporate income tax exemption for the
first year to the third year, and a 50% reduction for the
fourth year to the sixth year starting from the year in which
the entities first generate operating income (the “3+3 tax
holiday”). Xuzhou Sheentai New Energy Power Generation
Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group)
obtained the “Notification of Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")
3+3 tax holiday” in 2016 and was entitled to the 3+3 tax
holiday retrospectively from 2015 to 2020.

Entities engaged in software related business are eligible for
a corporate income tax exemption for the first year to second
year, and a 50% reduction for the third year to the fifth year
starting from the year in which the entities first generate
operating income (the “2+3 tax holiday”). Xuyi Guangcai
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group) obtained the “Notification of CIT
2+3 tax holiday” in 2018 and was entitled to 2+3 tax holiday
retrospectively from 2016 to 2020.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject to withholding
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the tax
arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial
owner” and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.
The withholding tax rate applicable to the Group is 5%.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
where the research and development expenses incurred by
an enterprise in its research and development activities do not
form intangible assets and are included in the current period’s
profit or loss, 50% of such research and development
expenses shall be deducted from the taxable income amount
of the year; where intangible assets are formed, pretax
amortisation shall be made based on 150% of the costs of
the intangible assets.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

12. FREHH (&)

(%)

MEAEREREETBINGETAE
BREESERANFERTE—EF
—FEEARERESTEMRSBH  UNE
WEFNFEAIRE50% M EATEH
(MB3+3BBERE]) o RMNIESHTRE R
BERAR(AEENEEEZENBAR)
R2016FERS[ R EAER ([ DEMF
fil)3+3Fi B R HAMMAI] - 520154
E2020F EHIM B ZEB3+3MBER
Hy o

WETHERAEBNCEBEEREE
LEWANFERTFE—EF_FELE
RESTEMSH  TRE=ZZFRFE
AR R50% /I ST ([ 243 BEE
H]) - FREMEEREBRAR(KE
BHEZEE2ENBAR)R2018FEHE
[EEMEB23B B ERHABAN] - 7
20165 £2020F E HiE I B = B 2+3
HIEERE o

BEFRE R EEEME - BRIE20084F 1
A1 8 RERERAE MR SISOk T E
B BRIBERBERMEIEE BT E
BERAO¥MNEBIZI0%HMNTBING
1R 75 P B A 3 B A B R BT T & 2 R Y
MELHERABER  FRTESERN
EnEA A THFH25%3 A R ER
BEREBHIEER AT ZEERIEINF K
5% o EMARAEBRTEINFE55% °

REFROE R EBIEME - SRR
SEBR BRI AN ER - KK ER
BEFTAEHEBEN  FEREATEEN
BREER L RBRAFEERELEEN
50% * EARFEEMATMESERNGR
FEREREEDN  RBEFEEKADN
150% FERL AT #E 64 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

12. FiSBixH (&)

The reconciliation between income tax expense and product of FTiS 8l i pna (18 LA B AT =
profit/(loss) before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as ZEERERROT ¢
follows:

Profit/(loss) before tax

(from continuing operations)

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
BipnEF(E18)
(REFELCEET) 14,226 (36,904)

Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax,
calculated at the rates applicable in the

IR AL AR S R E A
KA EBANEN, (BRI EE

jurisdictions concerned I 4,175 (8,655)
Tax effect of the preferential tax rates BERENTIELE 111 (840)
Additional deductible allowance for research RGN 2 B 3 & A

and development expenses (40) (65)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR E AT IR R 2 3,658 10,043
PRC dividend withholding tax A B R B TR AR 752 14
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEETIUM AR T U 2 (2,836) (2,260)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNTIEEENTIELE 4,041 3,207
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not FIFR S R AR R A B IR ES B YT IR

previously recognised 57 (2,662) (723)
Overprovision in prior years RIBEFE R (375) (1,493)
LAT THBER 957 118
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences RIERE K E B THIEFE (3.342) 2,469
Income tax expense FRiSH 2 i

(relating to continuing operations) (BRI S ET5ER) 4,439 1,815

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13.

The Group's profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging/
(crediting) the following:

2020

20205
Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations
BALE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL THRL

B EEBHGIAHERE)

Amortisation of intangible assets

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

FRER(EIR)

gk (Gt THIRHEE - AEBF R
R/ (BT

2019
2019
Discontinued
operations Total

Continuing
Total operations

Rit  BELERH ES) CE

HKS'000 HK$00 HK$000 HK$000
TAR BT BT B

(included in cost of sales) 389 - 389 550 - 550
Depreciation on property, plant ¥ BERSENE

and equipment 21,938 9,960 31,898 26,048 14,842 40,890
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ (EREEEITE 1,505 2472 3,977 1822 2,445 4,267
Auditor's remuneration EEMHE 1,330 - 1,330 1,330 = 1,330
Cost of inventories sold BERERE 13,841 154,793 168,634 12,034 194,265 206,299
Expenses relating to short-term lease 2R HFEAENEH 1,750 171 1,921 1,284 - 1,284
Allowance for inventories FEREE - - - - 319 319
Allowance for trade and other BARUGE R E e

receivables, net TERETE 622 10,515 11,137 6,266 (355) 5911
Research and development HEEE

expenditure 1322 9,012 10,334 2,312 10,247 12,559
Write off of property, plant ERE G

and equipment 120 62 182 88 573 661
Impairment of property, plant % - BERSERE

and equipment - - - 12,089 - 12,089
Staff costs BTIRKA 12,729 20,724 33,453 21,074 24,341 45,415

JEREREEAR A A
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e M B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 13.

Cost of inventories sold includes the following which are included in
the respective amounts disclosed separately above:

FErEd (BER) (&)
EEFHEAABENTEREREFALXER
BENAESER) -

2020 2019
20205 2019
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations  operations Total operations operations Total
BA&LE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR BT BT BT
Amortisation of intangible assets Bl AEEH 58 - 58 48 - 48
Depreciation on property, plantand ~ #1% - BERRENRE
equipment 16,476 7,923 24,399 16,750 12,467 29,217
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ (EREZENE 673 1,774 2,441 679 1,961 2,640
Expenses relating to short-term lease 2 E5#H EAAEIR 124 165 289 134 = 134
Staff costs BIMA 1,289 9,399 10,688 1377 10,690 12,067
Allowance for inventories FEEE - - - - 319 319
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEEAMAX

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Continuing operations BEKEER
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e e KOERL 11,915 18,186
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE 2= 45 B LARR (D R ETR R 2 63 837
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFT BB R 751 2,051
12,729 21,074

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 14.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2019: 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented in Note 15(a). The emoluments of the
remaining 3 (2019: 3) individuals are set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

EEENAX (&)
EfuGREMEAL

FanE -

AEERFE R ME AL 21E262(2019
F ) EE  EEE RKIFE15@) ST
MR o EFR317 (20194 :

3fL) AL Z Bl & #

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - e KEM 1,412 1,826
Equity-settled share-based payments VAR 2 45 B DA (0 BETR A S - 65
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFT B8 SR 56 24
1,468 1,915

The emoluments fell within the following band: emIA T2 BEHEN

Number of individuals

A
2020
20204
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
IEREREBERAR
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REMBmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE
15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EERMNRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments () ES=HME
The remuneration of every director is set out below: ERESHEFIIWT ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as
a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
BEEALERES(FRARAAFHNE VA NEXAAELHS
Employer's
(Notei) contribution
Estimated toa
money value  retirement

Discretionary of other benefit
Fees Salaries bonus benefits scheme
(Ht=Ei) FES
HitiERIM RINER
e #e BERA RELHE EMMUR CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx TER TEx

Executive directors YTES

Guo Yumin FER - 300 1,000 - 15 1315
Xia Yu EE - 300 50 - 15 365
Zeng Xiangyang Bl - 761 100 2 9 872
Independent BUFYTES

non-executive directors

Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Note ii) EEE (3 103 - - 1 - 104
Fong Wo, Felix (Note iii) AN (B i) 103 - - 1 - 104
Fan Qing Bl 174 - - 1 - 175
Dai Tin Yau (Note iv) EENEED) Al - - - - VA
Chan Yin Lam (Note iv) BER Fiztv) n - - - - VA
Total for 2020 2020545 522 1,361 1,150 5 39 3,077

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

15. EERMNRER(E)

(a) E=M=(&E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
AfBAREE)NEXNEKHE

AEBALERES (T

Salaries

25 xS
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL

Discretionary
bonus

WiEEA
HK$'000
AT

Employer's

(Note )  contribution
Estimated toa
money value retirement
of other benefit

benefits scheme
( EExst

RIIEH

STEIMER

HKS' HK$'000

AT AT

At
HK$'000
TAL

Executive directors HiTES
Guo Yumin BER 550 = 1,000 = 18 1,568
Xia Yu ER = 360 100 = 5 465
Zeng Xiangyang Bl - 764 300 34 28 1,126
Independent BUFYTES
non-executive directors
Lo Wa Kei, Roy (Note ii) B (fi i) 250 = = 14 = 264
Fong Wo, Felix (Note iii) F (i) 250 - - 14 = 264
Fan Qing Pl 250 - - 14 = 264
Total for 2019 201943 1,300 1,124 1,400 76 51 3,951
Notes: B EE
0) Estimated money value of other benefits represented share (i) HEin@fnEE SR AERE -
options.
(i) Retired on 29 May 2020. (i)  PA20209F5H29HRE ©
(i) Resigned on 29 May 2020. @iy M202055H29H FHE °
(iv)  Appointed on 29 May 2020. (iv)  H2020%5H29AEE(T -
JEREREEAR A A
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)

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

15.

16.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies and
aforementioned transaction, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 30 May 2020, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share capital of
Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen China”) and 70%
equity interest in Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co. Ltd.
("Qingdao Ener”) owned by Sheen China at a cash consideration of
RMB67,000,000 (equivalents to approximately HK$79,183,000) to
an independent third party and the disposal was completed on 10
December 2020, which carried out all of the Group’s manufacturing
and sales of BOPP films operations. Details of the assets and
liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal, are disclosed in Note 39(a).

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020
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16.

EEEMNRER ()

(b) EERXRG  RHERENZEK
R

iR e SRR M 42 R BR B LA R SR B
ARRREA IR AR I » RERSF
RUEARI I R AR A R RIRT 32
MAAREEREREEA T EEREESE
BEEAEGIERRS  RHREH -

EARIEEERK

7202054308 « ANEEET BRI S
VYEZHHEIBE(ES)BRAB(NEE])
EREBTRARIEERENSTEREOER
RERAGEEEH70%HBE  RER
& A AR67,000,0007T (FHE A 4979,183,000
BI) s EEBEER2020F12 108 5%
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16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

16. BRIEEXEE(E)

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued ERIHEEEBENERNGF,
operations: (EBE) :
Revenue WA 270,105 300,949
Cost of sales SHER A (209,599) (256,525)
Gross profit EA 60,506 44,424
Other income EH bl A 9,241 7,599
Other gains and losses, net Efhas & B85 R (1,561) (1,720)
Distribution costs DA (19,157) (21,985)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment B 5 e YR IE K H Ath R W s IR
losses on trade and other receivables, net CREEE),REEIEEEFHE (10,515) 355
Administrative expenses TE R (25,831) (30,807)
Other operating expenses Hiba g = (1)
Profit/(loss) from operations EEEF(B1R) 12,683 (2,135)
Finance costs B E R AN (2,873) (5,053)
Profit/(loss) before tax FAnEF,(EiE) 9,810 (7,188)
Income tax credit/(expense) FTERiE e,/ () 1,444 (1,966)
11,254 (9,154)
Loss on disposal of operations (Note 39(a)) & R E1E (15E39(a)) (3,666) =
Income tax expense FT{SHi sz i (833) =
(4,499) -
Profit/(loss) for the year from B IFRE T
discontinued operations FEREA(EE) 6,755 (9,154)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued IAFATEEEREEEEEFR
operations attributable to: A, (E8)
Equity shareholders of the Company KRR AR 5,266 (9,154)
Non-controlling interests IR 1,489 -
6,755 (9,154)
JERZEREBERAR
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FEMBHRERMETE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 128318 LFE
16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) 16. BRIEKEEK(E)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations include the ERIHEEERNFRNRF,(EE)BELT
following: S
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation e 12,432 17,287
Cash flows from discontinued operations: ERIEGLEBNRERE :
Net cash inflows from operating activities KRBTSR G REFRE 68,729 103,227
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from WEEEN(FTR),/Fri58e
investing activities e (4,277) 7,945
Net cash outflows from financing activities BEEBMARSREFE (8,287) (68,695)
Net cash inflows R mA SR 56,165 42,477
17. DIVIDEND 17.18 8
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
2020 Interim of HK$0.01 (2019: HK$Nil) B 2020 F AR E AR
per ordinary share paid 0.01%7T (20194 : =& 7T) 24,341 -

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEUBRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 18. BRER (EE)
From continuing and discontinued operations REFELERERIEREXR
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share is GREARESRA,(EER) HERA TR
based on the following: TE

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$"000 HK$°000
TEx FTHET

Earnings/(loss) BR,(58)

Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of calculating STEEREARE SRR (EE)
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share ETRR&EF, (&) 15,053 (47,873)

Number of shares BOEE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares STESREAREEAT (&)
for the purpose of calculating basic and Ffr FR &9 3 38 AR hnEE 35 24
diluted earnings/(loss) per share 2,434,136 2,437,838

JERZEREBERAR
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e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

18. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (CONTINUED)
From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
from continuing operations is based on the following:

B (EE)

Earnings/(loss)

Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share

18.

BRER,(E8) (&)

REFBELLEEBNEREAREIRN, (B
B DERATEEE

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
FBT

HK$"000
TEx

AESRERREERMN,(BE)
PR &M, (E518)

9,787 (38,719)

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings/(loss) per share from the discontinued operations
is HK$0.002 per share (2019: HK$(0.004) per share) and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share from the discontinued operations is
HK$0.002 per share (2019: HK$(0.004) per share), based on the
profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$5,266,000
(2019: loss of HK$9,154,000) and the denominators used are the
same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings/
(loss) per share.

As the Company’s share options as at 31 December 2019 and
2020 do not give rise to any dilutive effect to the earnings/(loss) per
share. The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used as
denominators in calculating the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are the same.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE
19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. 9% - BERRE
Solar Office
power Plantand  equipment Motor Construction
plants  Buildings  machinery  and others vehicles Yacht  in progress Total
BARER
RERREN BRY BEREE Bt a3 B ERIE Ch
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAL T THL TAL ‘ o TAL BT
Cost 73
At 1 January 2019 #2019F1A18 330,385 95,771 222,295 10,290 7494 35,716 1,239 703,190
Additions ®E 349 = 1114 265 949 205 1,943 4,825
Disposals k=5 = = (2,216) - - = = (2,216)
Wite off s = = = (225) (874) (123) (574) (1,79)
Transfer from constructionin -~ BEEETRE

progress 2,428 - - - - - (2,428) -
Exchange differences EREE (6,162) (1,767) (4,099) (156) (116) = (8 (12,308)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A318 R

1 January 2020 202051818 327,000 94,004 217,094 10,174 7453 35,798 172 691,695
Additions RE - - 1,058 188 19 - 3521 4,786
Disposals e - - (17,832) (1,036) (1,031) = = (19,899)
Wiite off it (114) (70) - (289) - - - (473)
Transfer from constructionin ~~ EEERTE

progress - - 3421 - - - (3.421) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR = (77.680)  (170,465) (5347) (2513) = - (256,011)
Exchange differences EREE 21,764 5,248 10,435 422 313 - 18 38,200
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A310 348,650 21,49 43,711 4112 4241 35,798 290 458,298
Accumulated depreciationand  Z3HTERAE

impairment
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 718 (37,03) (35,710) (132,962) 8713) (6,115) (23,832) - (244,355)
Charge for the year AERE (15,775) (4,581) (12,163) (7114) (509) (7,148) - (40,890)
Disposals e - - 1,694 - - - - 1,694
Write off i - - - 23 831 91 - 1,135
Impairment loss REFE - = (11,332) @2n) (484) - - (12,089)
Exchange differences ExzE 913 720 2474 145 92 - - 4384
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A318 &

1 January 2020 202051418 (51,885) (39571)  (152,289) (9,342) (6,185) (30,889) - (290,161)
Charge for the year REFE (15,646) (,221) (6,573) (350) (331) 4,777) = (31,899)
Disposals e - - 17,832 984 979 = - 19,795
Write off i - 70 - 21 - - - 291
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARE - 42,358 104918 4,786 2336 = - 154,398
Exchange differences EREE (4,389) (2,341) (7,090) (405) (253) - - (14,478)
At 31 December 2020 12020512 A31H (71,920) (3,705) (43,202) (4,106) (3,454) (35,666) = (162,053)
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2020 120205124318 276,730 17,791 509 6 187 132 290 296,245
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A310 275,115 54,433 64,805 832 1,268 4,909 172 401,534
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

" i

B BHRHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

19.

20.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$103,736,000. As 31 December
2020, no property, plant and equipment are pledged as security as
the Group’s bank borrowings had been derecognised upon disposal
of subsidiaries during the year.

At 31 December 2020, the Group was in the process of obtaining
the relevant building ownership certificates of certain buildings
with carrying amount of approximately HK$17,791,000 (2019:
HK$17,548,000).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

19.

20.
Leasehold
HELHh

HK$'000
TR

Y3 - B K& (&)

M2019F 12 A31H * BEEFEAEAREERTT
BERERZYE  BEKREZEASELY
103,736,0005 7T © 2020912 8318 » @R
AEEMRITERRFEANHEN BARRFLLE
R ISR EADE  BERXEER
E(R o

M2020F12A3108 + AEEFERERSEED
17,791,000 7T (20194F : 17,548,000/ 7T ) £
ETEFHIEBETAER °

EREEE

Leased Plant and
properties
HEYE
HK$'000

THTT

Total

A
(=)

land machinery
PR R e ER
HK$'000

TR

HK$'000
FH

At 1 January 2019 201951518 41,905 1,041 = 42,946
Additions e 1,998 353 5,883 8,234
Depreciation e (1,378) (928) (1,961) (4,267)
Exchange differences PEH Z%8 (785) (3) (56) (844)
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12 8318 41,740 463 3,866 46,069
Additions hiecl - 1,298 - 1,298
Depreciation e (1,334) (869) (1,774) (3,977)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(a))  HEHE A A (MzE39(a)) (18,519) - (2,205) (20,724)
Exchange differences B 3, = 7 2,462 5 113 2,580
At 31 December 2020 202012 A318 24,349 897 - 25,246

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$15,914,000 (2019:
HK$18,911,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
HK$15,139,000 (2019: HK$18,352,000) as at 31 December 2020.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20.

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets FREEENITERR
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in ~ FAE&EMHF B H
finance costs) (B ABERKA)

Expenses relating to short-term lease (included in E2fZHRFAE G A E A

cost of goods sold and administrative expenses)

(FF A ER A RITRAX)

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

FEREEEE)

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

3,977 4,267

1,238 1,451

1,927 1,284

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note 39(d).

For both years, the Group leases various land, offices, plant and
machinery for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed terms of 2 years to 50 years (2019: 2 years to 50 years).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of leasehold lands
pledged as security for the Group's bank borrowings amounted
to HK$18,020,000. At 31 December 2020, no leasehold lands
are pledged as security as the Group's bank borrowings had been
derecognised upon disposal of subsidiaries during the year.

BER R AR EHNRE39() °

MEHE  AEERESE L - BAE - K
FEH IS LUETT S - EAMME TR A2
Z504 (20194 : 2E504F) - EIEKEEE
RS R BEEE - HPEsESETRMER
R o RS E7ERE T TR HRFORT (5 71 Al s Y
HARR B+ BRAAA KR TE & I HEE A %Y ] 58 Hll 3
TR EARR -

2019F 12 A318 « BERAREERITER
ERHAE T A BRTE{E % 18,020,000 7T ©
2020F 12 A31H - BERAEERRITERR
FREENE AR RRIERER - SR AT
IR E T IEAEIR

21. GOODWILL 21. BE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Cost 2%
At 1 January and 31 December BM1A1TEER12A318 52,475 52,475
Accumulated impairment losses 2B EEER
At 1 January W1HA1H (52,475) (49,645)
Impairment loss recognised for the year RAF R R ERR = (2,830)
At 31 December MW12A31H (52,475) (52,475)
Carrying amount SREE
At 31 December ®12H31H - -
JEREREEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated as follows:

Cloud-related business: EE
Treasure Cloud Group (Note (a))
Yancheng Renhe Network Sci. & Tech. Limited
("YCRH") (Note (b))

21. BE(E)
REBAHBKE Y SEDRKERSREE
A TR EBAN RS ELSM - BB
EEEARMT :

2020
2020

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAET

HK$°000
TERT

Treasure Cloud Group(Ff{3¥(a)) = =
EE i A FIABAR B AR A ]
([ &85 AF0 ) (i EE(b)) - -

(a) Treasure Cloud Group

Goodwill allocated to Treasure Cloud Group of approximately
HK$49,645,000 was fully impaired in previous year.

(b) YCRH

For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing in respect of
acquisition of YCRH, goodwill arising from the business combinations
was allocated to the CGU of YCRH, which is the YCRH's cloud-related
business.

As at 31 December 2020, goodwill allocated to YCRH of
approximately HK$2,830,000 was fully impaired in previous year.

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU is
determined based on value in use calculation, which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 2%
for the CGU which is consistent with the forecast included in industry
reports. The growth rates used do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 19.5%. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.
Due to a slow-down in the cloud business, the Group has revised
its cash flow forecasts for this CGU. The CGU has been reduced to
its recoverable of HK$Nil and an impairment loss of HK$2,830,000
recognised on goodwill.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

(a) Treasure Cloud Group

43 Bt FTreasure Cloud Group 22 & 2 #749,645,000
PETTE R R EREURE

(b) EEHAM

B ERAMNBBRENANS  XHE
HRIEENREC AR EEM AMBEBNIE
TELEM -

2020128318 » DETFTEBAFMZEE
#92,830,0008 7L E R LRI FEBEURE ©

R2019F 12 A318  REEAEM 2K E
SHEEBEBEREBENEET 2518 EA
FEEBRMZ RERNFHMBRECHERE
TRl e AFU EMBRERENERRCELSE
AL EFTINE T R 2% EE - BEITHR
HEREMTER —B c FTAEREWTHRBRE
EAXABMKEEBHRATHERE - B
MELABGIRE19.5%8438 - FTIRAMERE A
MABEIRE  RIRES TN ERRE -
HAREXBEMRE AEBEBZReE
EBMVHMESREREN REELENLDH
BEHTKE BT BTk EERREEE
2,830,000/ 7T ©
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

22, BIEEE

HE2020F 12831 B IEFE

Software

LGS

HK$'000
THAT

Cost &S

At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 12,083

Exchange differences M 5 =50 (222)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 72019412 A31H %2020%F1 818 11,861

Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBA A (163)
Exchange differences X ERE 785

At 31 December 2020 72020412 H31H 12,483

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Z&t# 8 KR EEE

At 1 January 2019 7201941818 (10,527)
Amortisation for the year REFEHH (550)
Exchange differences X ERE 337

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 72019912 A31H &2020%F1A1H (10,740)
Amortisation for the year NEEHEE (389)
Disposal of subsidiaries ST A R 163

Exchange differences M 5 =5 (737)
At 31 December 2020 72020512 A318 (11,703)
Carrying amount BRMEIE

At 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H 780

At 31 December 2019

R2019412 A31H

1,121

The average remaining amortisation period of the software is 1.3

years (2019: 1.7 years).

e

PRI E A1 35 (20194 : 1.7

JERZEREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
23 T EL e

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 23. RIBARINKRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 and 2020 are R20194F 22020412 A31 HEO B A &l sH5 W
as follows: T

EC
Date and place of operation Issued and Group's
Name of company incorporation/establishment  and business paid up capital effective interest  Principal activities

INES: SRR/ R ER Y EERERHE  CRORARER FEENERAE  FEER
2020 2019
20205 20195

Direct held EEER

Sheen Tai Energy Investment  |BZR &% & 18 November 2013/BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding

Ltd. ("STEL") ERAA(SEL)  2013F11A188/ 3 10057 REZR
AREARNS

Sheen Tai Intemational ~ [EREURZARRAE 2 May 20138V Hong Kong 5$20,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

Investment Ltd. (STIL") ~~ ([STILJ) WESAA/ERERRES BF 20,000,000%70 REZR

Sheen China Group Holdings B SEIERARAE 27 November 2008/BV1 Hong Kong Us§10 100% 100%  Investment holding

Inc. ("SCGHI") ([SCGHI]) 2008F11A278/ B 1057 &K
ZREARNS

Treasure Cloud Limited Treasure Cloud Limited 4 January 2016/BVI Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

(1¢) (ImcJ) WI6F1R4E/ZRERREE FE 3 RESR

SheenTai Cloud Network ~ [EREREBRA 31 August 2016/8V1 Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100%  Investment holding

Limited ("STCNL") (fsTeNL]) WI658A31A/ABAARES B 10057 RESR

City Cloud Network (China) ST E4EA (FE)BE 1 June 2018V Hong Kong US§46 100% 100%  Inactive

Sci. & Tech. Limited BRAFCONG])  2018%6A10/%BkARES A% 46T B2

("CCNC)

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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e KR ERMEE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of company

PCEE

Indirect held BiEsE

Ling Xian Fei YuImportand - EARFEHA(FI)
ERAA(TXEY])
(WD R(KH2)

Export (Shenzhen) Co,,
Ltd. ("LXFY")
(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Jiangsu Sheen Colour
Science Technology Co.,
Ltd. (")SSC") (Note 1)
and (Note 4)

Qingdao Fner Packaging B
Technology Co,, Ltd. £k
("QD Ener”) (Note 1), iEINGE)
(Note 2) and (Note 5) R(Hizt)

Xuzhou New Advantage
Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. ("NARED")
(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Hong Kong Sheen Tai
Investment Limited
("HKSTL")

Sheen Tai (HK) New Energy  JEZ(E7%)
Investrent Limited RERRAA
("STNEIL (HK)") ([STNEIL(

Century Leader Asia Limited B NER
("CLAL") (fctaLl)

TEHERERR
BRAFT1SSCL)
GRINGR

BHEEARRERY
ERAT(NARED])
GRINGR)

ERIERRABRAR
(THKSTILY)

Date and place of
incorporation/establishment

AL/ L AR R

10 September 2007/The PRC
200759108 /4 E

6 March 2002/The PRC
200253868 /1B

27 June 2007/The PRC
2007568278 /48

24 July 2013The PRC
013570248 /4

10 May 2013/Hong Kong
201355A108 /%%

27 November 2013/Hong Kong
01351 A7/ F%

2 April 2007/Hong Kong
20074528,/ F%

Place of
operation
and business

EXRERILH

The PRC
hE

The PRC
HE

The PRC
RE

The PRC
HE

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
3

Issued and
paid up capital

BRIRARER

HK$23,180,000
23,180,000%7C

5§9,000,000
9,000,000%7C

S$12,000,000
12,000,005

15$30,000,000
30,000,000%7C

S$25,000,000
25,000,000%7C

HK$100
10087

HK$10,000
10,0007

Group's
effective interest
AEENERAE

2020
20205

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

23. RHEBARNIRE (F)

2019

20195

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

Principal activities

Investment holding and trading
of cigarette films

Printing of cigarette films

BEIRIR

Manufacturing of cigarette and
BOPP films

BERAARERLERN
2

Property development

NEER

Investment holding

RERE

Investment holding

Investment holding and trading
of cigarette films

JERZEREBERAR
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e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of
operation
and business

EXRERILH

Date and place of
incorporation/establishment

AL/ L AR R

Name of company

PCEE

Sheen China Group Holdings [BZSERRARRAR 5 September 2008/Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong
Limited (“SCGHL") (TSCGHLI) 200859A58 /A% Bt

Sheen China (Hong Kong)  [BZ(F%)ERAE 20 August 1997/Hong Kong The PRC
Limited ("HKSC") (THKSCL)(HisEs)  19978R208 /B % Gkt
(Note 5)

Shenzhen Shuntai BRI ERR 31 March 2015/The PRC The PRC
New Energy Science ERAF(SINED) 2015538318 /HE HE
Technology Co, Ltd. (MEED R(3E2)

("SZNE") (Note 1) and
(Note 2)

Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy  AMIEZRET8ZREE 21 April 2015/The PRC The PRC
Power Generation Co,  ARAR(DXNED)  201554F218 /% E B
Ld. ("XZNE") (Note 1) (PR R(AR3E3)
and (Note 3)

Hong Kong Taiwo Holding ~ E&ZFARAERAE 31 July 2015Hong Kong Hong Kong
Limited ("HKTHL") (THKTHL) 015578310 /&% (o

Falcon Wisdom Limited ~~ BEARAF(FW]) 18 December 2015HongKong  Hong Kong
(“FW") 0155128188 /E% 3

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

23. RHEBARNIRE (F)

Issued and
paid up capital
BRARMEER

HKS1
1B

HK$12,600,000
12,600,00070

S$36,663,640
36,663, 6405 7T

RMB39,000,000
AR39,000,0007

HK§100
10087

HK$1
157

Group's
effective interest
AEENERAE

2020 2019
008 019F
100% 100%

- 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

Inactive

S

Investment and trading of
cigarette films

RENBEERES

Investment holding and trading

REZRNES

Generation of photovoltaic
power

TREE
Inactive
BER

Investment holding
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e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. RMIBATMNKRE (&)

Place of
Date and place of operation Issued and Group's
Name of company incorporation/establishment  and business paid up capital effective interest  Principal activities

NGBS SRR/ AL ER Y BERERNY  BRORMRER FRENERAE  TEER
2020 2019
20205 20195

China City Cloud Network ~ FEBWERARE 29 August 2016/Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Sci. & Tech. Limited BRAR(ICCN])  201658R29B,/E% B 1007 REZR
("CCCN")

Sheyang Tengyun SIFRERSRR 30 May 2016/The PRC The PRC HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Cloud-related business
Information Technology ~~ ARAR(SYTY]) 2016854308 /4 E e 25,000,007 225
Co, Ltd. ("SYTY") CiEa)E7)

(Note 1) and (Note 2)

Xuyi Guangcai Information ~ FFEAEBIEE RHR 27 May 2016/The PRC The PRC HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Cloud-related business
Technology Co, Ltd. ERAFXYGC]) 2016458278 /& B 25,000,000/87C 225
("XYGC")Note T)and ~ (Hi&E1) R(MiEE2)

(Note 2)

Xuzhou Shuntai Agricultural  AHIEREERIE 16 February 2016/The PRC The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Agriculture technology
Technology Co, Ltd. ERAAXNY]) 2016528168 /5 & e AE#10,000,00078 BER
("XaNY") (Note 1)and~ (PHEE) R(FiEE3)

(Note 3)

Shenzhen Qianhai IR EEERE 5 May 2016/he PRC The PRC - 100% 100% Inactive
Tengzhiyun Network S~ BRAFI(SIQH]) 201685858 /%E hE B
& Tech, Limited ("SZQH") (P& 1) R (BizE2)

(Note 1) and (Note 2)
JERZREBER D E
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e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 23. RIBATMNKRE (&)

Place of
Date and place of operation Issued and Group's
Name of company incorporation/establishment  and business paid up capital effective interest  Principal activities

NGBS SRR/ AL ER Y BERERNY  BRORMRER FRENERAE  TEER
2020 2019
20205 20195

Harbin Binghe Information ~ BEEATESRR 7 June 2016/The PRC The PRC = 100% 100% Inactive
Technology Co, Ltd. BRAF(HEBH]) 201656778/ il B3
("HEBBH") (Note 1), GENGiE7)
(Note 2) and (Note 6) (Hiz¥e)
Shenzhen Qiannai Taizhiyun  RHIBTEZRZ SRR 14 December 2016/The PRC The PRC - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Network Sci. & Tech. BRAGSOH) 20165128148 /%8 hE REZR
Limited (*SZQH") (Bt 1) R (Btzt2)
(Note 1) and (Note 2)
YCRH (Note 1) and (Note 3)  EE5I AR 12 September 2013/The PRC The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Cloud-related business
(WENRE)  201359A128/48 el ARE1,0000007 5%
Note 1:  The English translation of the names is for reference only. The feEt1 : HENAWMEZEZBEERE - ZZFTEER
official names of these entities are in Chinese. B BBAR AL -
Note 2:  These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in PRC. 52 : ZEERATERINEDLE -
Note 3:  These entities are limited companies established in PRC. MizE3 : ZEEBATEKIBREMEAT -
Note 4:  The entity is a sino-foreign joint venture limited liability established MizFd : ZEBATBIKIZIZFIHNEEBEREED
in the PRC. ESL
Note 5:  These subsidiaries were disposed on 10 December 2020. MizEs :  ZEMBARIER2020F 12108 HE -
Note 6:  This subsidiary was deregistered on 23 July 2020. MisEe :  ZARIA2020E7 B23ABUN &L o
As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the 2020412 A318 » A"EE R KB Q7N
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") ARB(TARE DEZHRITRESES S
amounted to HK$235,110,000 (2019: HK$147,262,000). 235,110,000 /& 7T ( 2019 F : 147,262,000 /&
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's TT) ° AR iR A INE BB ST B SMNEE 12
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of &40 2 4508 ~ EERNEEERE -

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
172 Annual Report 2020
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e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

INVENTORIES 24. 7€
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Packaging materials manufacturing and trading ~ ESHEEM &
Raw materials EA R 2,150 23,823
Work in progress R = 6,844
Finished goods 2Pk M 220 18,407
2,370 49,074
Property development YFEER
Completed properties held for sale FHEEEME B TE 5,322 13,789
7,692 62,863

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. BZRWRIAREEWRIE

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FBT
Trade and bills receivables (Note (a)) B 5 EWGRIE R EWEE (Mi5ta) 100,736 159,617
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE (1,932) (2,178)
98,804 157,439
Deposits and other receivables (Note (b)) & ME A EUIE (B sEb))
— related parties —[EaRs S 1,334 544
— third parties —$£=7 19,502 32,340
Prepayments SN
— third parties —$=75 1,153 3,499
Due from a director and the ultimate FEUEE = R A iR 2R Il 75 SRR
controlling party (Note (c)) (FfF3E()
— Mr. Guo Yumin —PEREE 18 572
Due from a director (Note (c)) FEUE ERUE (MiFE(«)
- Ms. Xia Yu —BER &+ - 80
Loan receivable (Note (d)) FEWEF(MIFE)) 70,149 43,838
190,960 238,312
JERZEREBERAR

2020F G 3R

173



174

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(a)

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 180
days from the invoice date. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on
the invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

25. B 5 RUWFRIA R E bR URIR ()

(a)

AEBEREFPHNESGIAEETRAS
T o EAMBR-RNTNERE R B30
BE180AZH - 8FEFHERKEER
B o ANERENRRFFEIARES IR
BRARIES - EFTHANKRBETERNE
B e

REEZEH  AEBEZRKFARE
Wi (RHNER B ) < PRER DATAA T

2020 2019

20204 20194
Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivables receivables receivables receivables
BEZRWRIE BREE BZ5EKGE EBRER
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT
Unbilled (Note) AR () 93,451 - 27,540 =
Less than 30 days DHR30H 3,727 - 54,699 32,654
31-90 days 31290H 583 - 34,016 -
91-180 days 91£180H 64 - 6,415 -
181-365 days 181H365H - - 1,196 -
Over 365 days 365H AL 979 - 919 -
98,804 - 124,785 32,654

Note: As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the amount represents
unbilled tariff adjustment receivables of solar power plants
registered in the Catalogue.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of approximately
HK$36,878,000 were pledged to a bank to secure bank
borrowings as set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 December 2020, no trade receivables
were pledged subsequent to the settlement of the related
bank borrowings.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in RMB.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2020

M5E : 20209 2 20194F12 318 » % &8
E=LIUNEE= 3 0bN A = P N
EERERUGIE -

72019412 A318 -+ 4936,878,0005% 7T
K& 5 e SRIE TH IR T ER1T ARG 4R T
B ERE MBS mRMEE32E - R
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&I IR IR E 5 RIS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) At 31 December 2020, an allowance of approximately
HK$2,696,000 (2019: HK$3,548,000) was made for other
receivables.

()  Details of amounts due from directors and the ultimate

controlling party are as follows:

BERKSE
gt

Mr. Guo Yumin
Ms. Xia Yu

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

25. B 5 RUWFRIA R E bR URIR ()

(b) 20204 12H31H @ L E MBI
TH 5T R B 5 492,696,000 7T (20194F -
3,548,000 7T) °

(@ RBRESRKKIEGTORBEFBAOT

Maximum

Balance at Balance at amount

31 December 31 December outstanding

2020 2019 during the year
120204 720195

128318/ 1283188 FRER

o3 iR REELH

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FiH T T

18 572 572

- 80 80

The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.

As at 31 December 2020, no allowance is made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts due from directors and the ultimate
controlling party.

(d) Loan receivable of HK$70,149,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$1,365,000) (2019: HK$43,838,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$862,000)) related
a loan agreement entered into by an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company on 18 December 2020 with
Suining Chuyue Zhiye Company Limited (B ZE# E B ¥4
R 2 &) (“Suining Chuyue”), a company established in the
PRC with limited liability, and Mr. Sun Chuyue, 70% equity
interest owner of Suining Chuyue, and Mr. Sun Yong, the
father of Mr. Sun Chuyue. Pursuant to the loan agreement,
the Group agreed to provide to Suining Chuyue a loan
amount of RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$71,514,000) (2019: RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$44,700,000)) for a term of six months,
which carries interest at 0.5% (2019: 1%) per month and is
secured by (1) 40% equity interest in Suining Chuyue which is
held by Mr. Sun Chuyue as the share charge in favour of the
subsidiary and (2) personal guarantee given by Mr. Sun Yong
in favour of the subsidiary.

=18
i3

Z
2

.

EREREER R RAREKRS

7202012 A31H - BIEREREE R
B AR I 5 B (il st 1 BT Uk [e] < BE 1 AR
-

(d) FEUWE 70,149,000/ 7t (F1k RER B &
1,365,000 7T ) (2019 F : 43,838,000
78 7T (F1B R BR #:455862,000/8 7T ) ) B AR
ANRIH—RHEZEE2EKB R R R2020F
2R 18HEMEEEEXFR A A([HE
BRE] —RERBNIMERESE
naEl)  BRERE(BEERENT70%M
EREE) REBRE(BRRELEENR
F)FLMERBHER - BRIEERB
#AKEREAEERRREARK
60,000,0007T (#8574 4971,514,0007% 7T)
(20194 : A% 40,000,0007C ($ER
#944,700,0007% 7T ) ) E 3K AHIS(E
A & H05%(2019%F : 1%):H 8 -
WAMBREE L EFENBEERLEI0%
B&HE - ERUAMIE A R AR = AR ARDIK
o RQBEBEEUNBAR AR
KB A FEIRVE AR -
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B BHRHEE

" i

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

26.

27.

CONTRACT ASSETS

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to tariff
adjustments for the electricity sold to the local state grid companies
in the PRC. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the Group’s respective operating power plants are registered
in the Catalogue pursuant to prevailing national government
policies on renewable energy for solar power plants.

As one of the operating power plants of the Group has been
registered in the Catalogue during the year, the respective amount
of the contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables at the point
at which it is registered in the Catalogue accordingly.

The Directors considered that the ECL for contract assets is
insignificant as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, as the collection is
well supported by the government policies.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Equity securities, at fair value

Listed in Hong Kong REB L™

26.

27.

AR - BARBE

BREE

BREEIEYRARERTEL S HREH
REHEENMBENEEFBHERN - EXRE
EEMLERTUHRBBUNRITE2EMEASGE
HEVLA BARREEIIABRE - aWEE
AR Z B FOA -

AR AEEREP —HLERBUETNFEATIA
BE o RtEMEENHRSRENENIERE
BETREBHMNDORLESHRKGR -

EERA - HN2020F K%2019F 128318 » &4
EEMNBHEEEEBTTIEKN @ AAKRFIER
FERRFTD I -

UAREEFEEHSEHTAEHE
HNEMEE

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
T

HK$°000
TR

1,442 1,696

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are classified as
held for trading.

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are measured at
FVTPL in accordance with HKFRS 9.

The investments in listed equity securities offer the Group the
opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value
gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

Information about the Group'’s exposure to price risk is provided in
Note 6(b). Information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value is provided in Note 7.
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$235,161,000 (2019:
HK$147,310,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

SHARE CAPITAL

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

28. RITRESER

7202012 A31 8 - AREE ZR1TRIRE 45
IARKBHE © £%/4235,161,000/475(2019
£ :147,310,00087T) © & AR H iR INE
BB ST B SNE B IR R0 R AETE - & E RATEE
EERE

29. BRA&

2020 PAONIC)
20204 20194
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BRHEE 28 RHOHEE G
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FET Tz FA&T
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each &A% {E0.00257% 7TH)
LA 8,000,000 20,000 8,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each & JXE{E0.0025/5 749
At 1 January ®1A1R 2,434,136 6,085 2,455,248 6,138
Repurchase of shares (Note a) [B1fE A% 1 (i 5Ea) = - (21,112) (53)
At 31 December ®12H831H 2,434,136 6,085 2,434,136 6,085

Note a:  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
repurchased on the Stock Exchange a total of 21,112,000
shares of HK$0.0025 each of the Company, at an aggregate
consideration after expenses of approximately HK$4,291,000,
which were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2019.
The nominal value of the cancelled shares was credited to capital
redemption reserve and the aggregate consideration paid was
debited to the share premium of the Group.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

MizEa: B ZE2019F12A31BLEFE » AR AR
Bék 32 Ffr [@ B & 21,112,000 & & f% &
0.0025B L 2 A AR + MBRFAREZ
R (EX4,291,000% 70+ HEREZE2019
F12A31BILFEFH - EEERONE
BT AEARERFE BB REN
BB AEBERRDEE o

AEBEREAY B NS EREAEBLEE
18 T B B B 1 S A T BA LR SR
1% -

JERZEREBERAR
2020F G 3R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Total debt
comprises borrowings. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

The Group was in a net cash position as of 31 December 2020 and
hence no gearing ratio was presented. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group was to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced
position and ensure that there was adequate working capital
to service its debt obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio at 31
December 2019 was -12%.

The Group regards total equity other than non-controlling interests
as capital, for management purpose. The amount of capital as at
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$812,842,000
(2019: HK$765,651,000), in which the Group considers as optimal
having considered the projected capital expenditures and the
projected investment opportunities.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial
covenants attached to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. AARIBBRARREESD
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) AARFBMRRT
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRIRIRE 23 477,091 481,512
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables HAb U GRIA 1,078 2,138
Due from subsidiaries AR NGO 191,463 301,734
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S R 87,155 8,688
Total current assets REEEHLE 279,696 312,560
Current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables H b FE(S 5B 145 24
Due to subsidiaries FETBT B A R FIE 45,229 57,054
Total current liabilities HREEEAEE 45,374 57,078
Net current assets REEETHE 234,322 255,482
NET ASSETS BEE 711,413 736,994
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR{#HE
Share capital N 29 6,085 6,085
Reserves (e 30(b) 705,328 730,909
Equity % 711,413 736,994
Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and is MEBEESN20215F3 831 B ET B T AL
signed on its behalf by: REEFSEE
Guo Yumin Xia Yu
HER b

JERZEREBERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

30. AATRABRRAKRK REEEE(R)

(b) FATREEE

Capital Share-based
Share Treasury  redemption Capital  payments Retained

premium shares reserve reserve reserve profits Total

NRBE

EARE i
RiEE EBHERG f EAGE XfiikfE RE &R At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL BT TAL BT ThL TAL
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A18 605,876 - - 81,955 16,001 54,492 758,324
Loss for the year EnER = = = = = (24,014) (24,014)
Repurchase of shares BERG = (4,291) = = = = (4291)
Cancellation of shares TR (4.291) 4291 53 = = = 53
Share-hased payments DG BERRZ (T - - - - 837 - 837
At 31 December 2019 20195124318 601,585 - 53 81,955 16,838 30478 730,909
At 1 January 2020 R202051 418 601,585 - 53 81,955 16,838 30,478 730,909
Loss for the year EnEs = = = = = (1303) (1,303)
Share-hased payments CARfR AR = = = = 63 = 63
Lapse of share options BRERY - = - - (3,035) 3,035 =
Dividend paid BERRE = = = = = (24,341) (24,341)
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12 4318 601,585 - 53 81,955 13,866 7,869 705,328
31. RESERVES (N
(a) Group (a) &£KH

The amounts of the Group'’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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31.

RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

31. f#E(E)
(b) fEENHEEMBAR(E)

Capital redemption reserve (i) EXELEREE

Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction of & 7N (o) 7 R 2 A B Rk 8RB BE AR (D
the nominal value of the issued capital of the Company BARRNREETERNEENRD ©
upon the cancellation of the repurchased shares.

Capital reserve (i) BERFEE

The capital reserve mainly represents the contribution BERREEEREEEESNTEFER
from the ultimate controlling party and the difference FrUREE b B A B (D < E{E AR
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries AIR2012F6 A21 HEARERE
acquired over the nominal value of shares issued by the MEITRND 2 BB ZR -
Company in exchange under the reorganisation of the

Group on 21 June 2012.

Statutory reserve (iv) SEERE

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC RBEEANTEER - NEBRFT
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate BEHRENBARABEENT L
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior (s E—AEE/ HHEAE
year/period losses) to the statutory reserve until such BIMI0%BREEERHE  BEX
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of each ZERBEEZ AP ENE LA
relevant PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory A ARH50% o B DKL E
reserve must be made before distribution of dividends THEmREAEEEETERE &
to equity shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can TE S n] RES A% AR BE
be utilised, upon approval by the relevant authorities, &BA - LUKIEMTE A R A 25HE
to offset accumulated losses or to increase registered B mEFRER -

capital of the subsidiary.

Share-based payments reserve (v) LIBROAEBRNXZSREE

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair VARR 53 /2% BB £ 52 <) o 18+ AR 4 BA
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised FEAU) P LA R A B AR (D R E
share options granted to employees of the Group WA EHEERTAEEES
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy RIRITEEIRERN B IR S A5 8E
adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in B AREE -

Note 4(u) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange reserve (vi) EXEE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 4(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

&R R BB E I ER I
BRAAELENMBELER - %
BIRBAR A B MR M 40 # 7
ZEETRRRIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

32. RITER

32. BANK BORROWINGS

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAxT

Bank loans IRITER - 69,902
The bank borrowings are repayable within one year or on demand. RITEFEN—FARIZEKETEE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

REERTERNRMEETIA TIIERERHE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FH&T

HK$ BT - 10,000
United States dollars (“US$") ESUETA), — 4,027
RMB AR - 55,875
- 69,902

As at 31 December 2020, all bank borrowings had either been fully
settled or derecognised upon disposal of subsidiaries during the
year.

As at 31 December 2019, the average interest rate of bank
borrowings was 5.06% per annum. Bank borrowings of
HK$55,875,000 are arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. Other bank borrowings are
arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2019, bank loans of HK$69,902,000 are
secured by a charge over the Group’s leasehold land (Note 20),
buildings and machinery (Note 19), trade receivables (Note 25)
and corporate guarantees executed by the Company and two
subsidiaries.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the banks
to immediately call borrowings. These have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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33. DEFERRED TAX

33.

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

BEBRELR -

Unrealised
profit

AER RN
HK$'000

Provision for
inventories,
trade and

Accrued other
expenses

receivables
75 EF
EWFER
HitERFIE
B
HK$'000

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

ESER TR

BEGAVBRARERNBELEHEEE (&
B VAR R D MAFEZBIAT

Undistributed
profits of

Tax losses  subsidiaries

WEARN

HEBR  ADEEN

Fair value
adjustment
of assets

BEH

Ax
=]
HK$'000

S
BT

At 1 January 2019 1201981818 1,393 957 2,206 135 (5,586) (258) (1,153)
Exchange differences EHES = () (38) = = = 43)
(Charge)/credit to profit (fEg)/E AR

or loss (1,328) (952) (50) (135) (14) 68 2.41)
At 31 December 2019 12019%12A31H 65 = 2,118 = (5,600) (190) (3,607)
Exchange differences =R - - 245 - - - 245
(Charge)/credit to profit (HBRB)/ Gt AB&

or loss (63) - 1,648 - (752) @ 826
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR

(Note 39(a)) (BifE39()) = = (2,645) = = = (2,645)
At 31 December 2020 120205124318 2 - 1,366 - (6,352) (197) (5,181)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position:

FAMBARRROERK -

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

Deferred tax assets FEF TR E B 1,368 2,183
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEE F (6,549) (5,790)
(5,181) (3,607)

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$18,490,000 (2019: HK$48,880,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$11,655,000 that will
expire on various dates up to 2025 (2019: HK$27,570,000 expire in

2024). Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RBEHR  AEEEEARADAHREESRE
18,490,000 7 7t (20194 : 48,880,00078 JT )
AT AR SEAR TR T o FRR R 2R & F) 2R 2 1
AITERIME - WERRBELERIBEE - st AKE
AR IEEE R ETE 11,655,00078 7T 18 720254
(20194 : 27,570,000/ 7022024 F 2 87 2 Al
K-N[R] B BRRIER - E b FiTE A8 Al 4B AR HR Ak o

IERZEREEERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

34. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 34. EEBTFEED
The deferred government grants represented the subsidies granted BELEBNEIRERPEBRNRBES TWE
by the PRC government to the Group in respect of acquisition of B MR R EREEES TASE /AL o

certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

2020 2019
20205 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T
At 1 January R1A1R 6,200 =
Received during the year AN EREEX - 6,504
Credit to profit or loss for the year (Note 9) AT AFE B (MFE9) (264) (213)
Exchange differences ME 3 FE 399 91)
At 31 December M12A318 6,335 6,200
Analysed as: DT
Current liabilities PoEUN=NE 280 262
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 6,055 5,938
6,335 6,200
35. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 35. ESENREREMEMNRE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade and bills payables B S ENFIE RERN R 12,034 60,854
Other payables and accruals HAb R RIERE & A
— related parties —BAEst 137 128
— third parties —F=7 9,119 46,329
21,290 107,311

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

35. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 35. ESEARERAEMENSRIE(E)
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on invoice B I ENRERENERNER ST (RERER
date, is as follows: BT :

2020 2019
20205 20194
Trade Bills Trade Bills
payables [EVEL [ payables payables

#5 5
BARE  EARE  EERE EEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHx  FEm  TEr T

Due within 1 month or on demand 1E A AR Higk e Z sk 668 = 12,642 22,350
Due after 1 month but within 1E A& 1E31E A R E &
3 months 10 - 7,740 -
Due after 3 months but within 31E A 1218 61E A A EA
6 months 62 - 4,699 -
Due more than 6 months 61E H 1% 251 11,294 = 13,423 =
12,034 - 38,504 22,350
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables are AEEEFENFRERENEBROEESET)
denominated in RMB. AR®EE -
36. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 36. EHNEE
Contract liabilities represented progress billing recognised in relation BHEBENHEEER MY ERRIEER -
to sales of goods and properties. Such liabilities decrease as a result RERANBEREEMBERARBEHEEEER
of the disposal of subsidiaries during the reporting period. Ao
Movements in contract liabilities: BHBEZS
2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
; FET
Balance at 1 January M1 A1 BB R 1,950 2,185
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FRNRBERBANESNBE
recognising revenue during the year was (BIst A KA E) R
included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period (1,372) (1,838)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of EIEN R FIBB A LA LN
advance received from customers 619 1,641
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(a)) BT B A 7] (B EE39(a)) (1,148) =
Exchange differences PE W Z=%8 66 (38)
Balance at 31 December W12 A31H & 115 1,950
EEEREEERAT
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37. LEASE LIABILITIES 37. HEA®E

Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments

REAENRK RIEEENRNRE

2020 2019 2020 2019
202045 20194 20204 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FTEx FAxT

Within one year —FR 2,027 3,880 1,067 2,708
More than one year, but not —F LA L ETBIBRE

exceeding two years 1,531 3,458 645 2,504
More than two years, but not more ~ M4ELA HETBBERE

than five years 3,881 3,629 1,344 1,199

More than five years WBBRAF 20,824 20,743 12,858 12,500

28,263 31,710 15,914 18,911

Less: Future finance charges B0 R E & N/A N/A

(12,349) (12,799) TERA NEH

Present value of lease obligations HEHRENIRE 15,914 18,911 15,914 18,911
Less: Amount due for settlement B 128 A AR AN 2R

within 12 months (shown (RREBEaETER)

under current liabilities) (1,067) (2,708)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A& 2 HipE 2 8

12 months 14,847 16,203

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease ERAREESENNETIESEEREN T
liabilities range from 2.55% to 11.18% (2019: from 2.55% to 2.55%%11.8%(20194F : 2.55%%11.18%) °
11.18%).
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities are AEEHESENREENTIEBE :

denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

HK$ BT 895 274
RMB AR #E 15,019 18,637
15,914 18,911

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share
option scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees
with the opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@  The terms and conditions of the grants at the date of the
grants are as follows:

38.

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

BABR 45 2 LR M0 3% 14

BIEERME—IRRA2012F6 A22BRBAE
BRFR - BAAHREATERE2([BR
REETE ) B ERREY - AERRARERSE
BARR AR AL

B S SRR MR E&XENTTBAS
AAEERE (28)  EFREARRHEINE
BIARfRE AR BRI o

BNBERERE TRAEARMNRBARAR —BE
B WABRN 2HEE -

() IR B EPTR BRI #T
LI

Options granted to

BFUTATHERE
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees
RHBH SEAH E#HA BEx =1
29 January 2015 29 January 2016 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 2016%F1H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2017 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
2015414298 20171 A298 20251 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2018 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201841 H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2019 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 201941 H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2020 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
2015414298 202041 A29H 202541 H28H

2,100,000 12,500,000 14,600,000

IERZEREEERAF
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 38. URGBAEBRNZ (&)
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) EERREEMZE MEFHITERGDT ¢

options are as follows:

Share options granted
on 29 January 2015

2015515290 & LR
Weighted
average No. of
exercise price options
T EE BRERE
‘000
FR%
Outstanding at 1 January 2020 #2020F1 B 1B MARTTE HK$0.8250 53,650
Lapsed during the year FRRA HK$0.8250 (4,100)
Outstanding at 31 December 2020 202012 A31 B HARTTE HK$0.8250 49,550
Exercisable at 31 December 2020 1202012 A31HAI1TfE HK$0.8250 49,550
Outstanding at 1 January 2019 and 720191 A1B %2019512H
31 December 2019 31 B mARITHRE HK$0.8250 53,650
Exercisable at 31 December 2019 1201912 A31HAJ1T{# HK$0.8250 42,920
The share options granted on 29 January 2015 outstanding at 20154 1 429 B #t £ if1 58 2020 4F 12
31 December 2020 had an exercise price of HK$0.8250 (2019: A3TEHEARITENBERENITEER
HK$0.8250) and a weighted average remaining contractual 0.8250/8 70 (20194 : 0.8250/87T) * &
life of 4.08 years (2019: 5.08 years). T hNHEF A I HARR A4.084F (20194F ¢
5.084F) °
The numbers of options and weighted average exercise price RIS B KNI TERE TR R A TR
were presented as after the effect of the share subdivision #E2015F9 A24 A AR IZFRAR
with effect from 24 September 2015 on the basis of each A B BT R BE R RO IF A A4RF AR
issued or unissued share of the Company was subdivided into N2 EEZT -

4 subdivided shares.

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. ZREHRE&REBERKF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEMBLHE
As referred to in Note 16 to the consolidated financial MERE B RRM 6P - AEER
statements, on 10 December 2020 the Group discontinued its 202012 A 108 B EHM B A RIEE KR
manufacturing and sales of BOPP films operations at the time S ERARL EHEHERGE A EE
of the disposal of its subsidiaries, Sheen China and Qingdao JEZERS o
Ener.

Net assets of Sheen China and Qingdao Ener at the date of REERHIEER S SRENEEFEN

disposal were as follows:

T

HK$'000
FHT

Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 101,613
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20,724
Deferred tax assets RERIAEE 2,645
Inventories A= 81,089
Trade and other receivables B 5 MWk & E b fE W sk TE 78,829
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS ek 5,040
Trade and other payables B 5 FERTR0A R H A T 5K (153,684)
Contract liabilities EHEE (1,148)
Bank borrowings HRITEK (23,540)
Current tax liabilities RIEAIE B E (947)
Lease liabilities HEAE (2,412)
Net assets disposed of P& & ESFE 108,209
Release of foreign currency translation reserve BmINE I B # 6,425
Exclusion of the carrying amount of SR IR R AR (E
non-controlling interests (31,785)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 16) HEH B A RERE(HE16) (3,666)
Total consideration BR(E 79,183
Consideration satisfied by Cash LR SFTERE 79,183
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEESRRSMAEE :
Cash consideration received BEUWIRSNE 79,183
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FTHERE RIREFEIER (5,040)
74,143
JEREREEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. LR REBRMF(E)

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without
loss of control

During the year, the Group disposed of 30% interests in
Qingdao Ener at a cash consideration of RMB27,000,000
(equivalents to approximately HK$29,624,000). The effect
of the disposal on the equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company is as follows:

(b)

HER—BENARZEHENRER
AR

FRN - ARECHESSHAE30% M
= RBAAR27,000,0007T (FHER
#929,624,0008 7T ) o HEH AN Rl
AR PR IE R BT

HK$°000
FHT

Carrying amount of non-controlling H & IR R O BRI (B

interests disposed (28,108)
Consideration received from non-controlling A FEPE AR R e R A R (B

interests 29,624
Gain on disposal recognised directly in equity HEERNER RN EHENRE 1,516

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(9)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

RERERBRMEE(E)

HE2020F 12831 B IEFE

() MEFDRELENAEYHK

TRAMTEEREZDREENEEE
g ’Eﬁiﬁu%&#fﬁ/f”@ﬁ BEIREN AT
EENBBEAEEGS
TREBAD iﬁﬁjkaiﬁi//luﬁy/\iﬁﬁ
MEEBMEENRSTHEE -

e //|L§%§ ‘:F‘ E2)

Disposal of
I January Cash subsidiaries Exchange 31 December
2020 flows Additions (Note 39(a)) differences 2020
20206 HENELR 2020
1A1H BeRE BE  (W&E39()) EXZE  12A31A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Bank borrowings (Note 32)  $B{TE R (Ff532) 69,902 (47,594) - (23,540) 1,232 -
Lease liabilities (Note 37) HEAEME3T) 18,911 (2,948) 1,298 (2.412) 1,065 15914
88,813 (50,542) 1,298 (25,952) 2,297 15,914

1 January
2019
20194
118
HK$'000
THEx

Additions

%%
HK$'000

Exchange
differences

e
HK$'000
570

31 December
2019
20194
12A318
HK$°000
TH7

Bank borrowings (Note 32)  $R{TE R (F7£32) 159,625 (88,356) - (1,367) 69,902
Lease liabilities (Note 37) HEa A7) 16,010 (3,001) 6,237 (335) 18,911
175,635 (91,357) 6,237 (1,702) 88,813

BRI EE AR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. LR REBRMF(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERSRHUAE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash FAGEHERERTHHEERENTS
flows for leases comprise the following: o
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within operating cash flows LR RET 3,165 2,735
Within investing cash flows ERERERESR - 286
Within financing cash flows EREReRET 2,948 3,001
6,113 6,022
These amounts relate to the following: ZERREEATIEEAR

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
2EE 6,113 5,736
e A ENK - 286
6,113 6,022
(e) Major non-cash transaction (e) EEFBERSH
During the year, the Group acquired right-of-use assets of FN - ANEBEWEF#EEE,298,000
HK$1,298,000 (2019: HK$8,234,000) of which an amount B IT(20194F 8,234,000 7T) » HAH
of approximately HK$1,298,000 (2019: HK$6,237,000) was 1,298,000/87L.(20194F : 6,237,000/ L)
financed by lease liabilities. HHEEERE -
40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. HAREE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant 202012 A318 » AEBEWE T E R A
contingent liabilities (2019: Nil). B{E(20194F : &) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 41. KEHERH

The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As AEEFHTUMAEEEHHEE - 12020512
at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar A318 - RHEEHE Ei 20 K EA S H
to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease HEZ ARG AEEHR S -

expense disclosed in Note 20.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding lease commitments 2020612 A31H - SR AEEENKRER
relating to these offices are approximately HK$466,000 (2019: T & #HE#)466,0007% 7T (20194 : 336,0007%
HK$336,000). T) e

The Group as lessor rEBEERHBAA

Operating leases relate to building owned by the Group with lease REEMEEEFHEBECEEHEENHI A2
terms of 2 years. The lessee does not have an option to purchase F o AAAEREHBERSEEDE -

the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HERKNSERERNKOT
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —FR - 2,403
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss: TREVEERFPRENSE -
2019
20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Lease income on operating leases LEHEHES WA 483 983
JEREREEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

42, EXBEEBAERS

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, transactions with REZE2020F %2019F 12 A31BIEFER » £
the following parties are considered to be related party transactions: TONEFETORSER B TS

Mr. Guo Yumin
FEREE

Ms. Xia Yu
Bzt

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note)
wNmEFHERZEER AT ()

Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note)
RINERFEEREER DA (M)

Cheng Jun Group Limited
HEEEFRAA

Union Winful Limited
B EKEHRAR]

Sheen Dragon Properties Limited

R EFARAR

Hong Kong Rising Star Group Holdings Limited
BEREREEERERAT

Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment Company Limited

FRMEREBRAR

Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management Co., Ltd (Note)

Director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company

ARRESE RRRIESTT

Director and the ultimate controlling party of the Company
RNRATER KRS

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERELEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
MAEREEES

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERELEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
MAEREEES

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERELEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
MAEREEES

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERELEESR

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin

IRINEMN 3 E R FBR A &) (i EE) M ERTERS
Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official e : HAXAHWEZEBERSE  ZEETEN
names of these entities are in Chinese. BHATBIAR A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HIEFE
42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. EXBHARS (#)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEABEFHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the REBEZFERAEFH M (RERMIFES
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors IR TEE R 14TRES
as disclosed in Note 15 and certain of the highest paid NTETFEEFHMESOFB)EHINAT

employees as disclosed in Note 14, is as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Short-term employee benefits 2 EE B AEF 4,973 7,059
Post-employment benefits it | 227 281
Equity compensation benefits P& (E AR A 15 227
5,215 7,567

Total remuneration is disclosed in “staff costs” in Note 14. HFNAAZER M FE14] B TR A | i EE -

JERZREBER D E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. EXB#HLIR5S (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (b) HABEAHARS
In addition to those related party transactions disclosed in Brér & B 7% 3R R M 7E42(a) ﬂ?}'i;gﬁ ZH
Note 42(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the BEAR SN - NEBENFRNEEBE ST

SIATRS

Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

2020
20204
Repayment
Repayment received
Rental torelated from related
expenses parties parties
T RAEE 7 W EL
HEMx MABKLSER HIERK
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THET FHET
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate HRNIR RS HE R B

Development Co., Ltd. BRAA] 717 (1,125) -
Cheng Jun Group Limited %}iﬁ{h;‘%lﬁ@“* = (10) 10
Union Winful Limited Bia kBHRA = (2) 2
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited ImEEEBRA 350 397
Hong Kong Rising Star Group %Ei?%e%)ﬁ%@ﬂﬁ

Holdings Limited BRAA] = (5) 5
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon BRMEREARAR]

Investment Company Limited - (5) 5
Mr. Guo Yumin BERSEE 507 (982) 1,536
Ms. Xia Yu BRxt - - 80

1,574 (2,129) 2,035
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42,

e B RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

EXBBALIRS (&)

(b) HtbEBELX% (&)

2019
20194
Repayment
Repayment received
NEIIE] to related from related

expenses OELES EES
{delicba)

HEMAX MRS ER Y ER B 2 K
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FET

Cheng Jun Group Limited WEEBBR AT = = 26
Union Winful Limited ek EBRAT = = 51
Hong Kong Rising Star Group EBEREEER

Holdings Limited BRAA] - - 144
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon BRI EIREBR AR

Investment Company Limited - - 7
Sheen Dragon Properties Limited ImEEXERAA 350 = =
Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate IR ImEE S Hh EE R 3

Development Co., Ltd. AR AA] - (830) =
Mr. Guo Yumin PEREE 170 (577) =

520 (1,407) 228
JEREREEAR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. EXB#HLERS (&)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (c)

ELRAHE 5 AR ER

MR20209F 201912 A31H @ REEHE
BUAT EERFEE 5 MR8

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT
Due from related companies JFE L R 5 R IR
— Sheen Dragon Properties Limited - EXARAT (i) 147 544
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate — RN IR BE R HhEE A 8
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT (i) 1,187 =
Due from directors and the ultimate JEMCE = R A 4R w7
controlling party FKIA
—Mr. Guo Yumin - EREE (i) 18 572
— Ms. Xia Yu -BERLZ+L (i) - 80
Due to a related company JiE 1< S 2 R KIE
— Xuzhou Lvzhou Property — RINERIN T T 1R
Management Co., Ltd. BRAT (i) (137) (128)
1,215 1,068
Note: FfRE -

FEW (BB AR R ERFIEB 2
B BREER—FAkm -

(i) The amounts due from/(to) related companies and a director (i)
are interest-free and expected to be recovered within one year.

LBy

ERIMEEEBOLEEN MRERESET
NN BRZENAFEESBRSERIEKE

43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 43,

The comparative profit and cash flows from discontinued operations
have been re-presented to include those operations classified as

discontinued in the current year. BIZETS ©

44. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44, HEMBERK
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by RS MAN2021E3A31 BREE SR ET IR
the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021. T FI)EE o
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Summary Financial Information

MBERMBE

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and X ABARENBFEEANEEC TIBEEAREE
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years: REBEZHE :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 2016%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT TAT FAT FAT
(Re-presented) (Restated) (Restated) (GESEIE))
27 (Fit) (Fat) (F3t)
RESULTS ES
Revenue KA
Continuing operations HESE R 79,525 75,259 111,814 932,601 206,562
Discontinued operations BRIEEE R 270,105 300,949 342,013 318,105 271,792
349,630 376,208 453,827 1,250,706 478,354
Profit/(loss) before tax FADEF,/(E518) 14,226 (36,904) (20,665) (209,334) 25,524
Income tax (expense)/credit Fr8®i () /1E% (4,439) (1,815) (6,747) 22,491 (6,227)
Profit/(loss) for the year from SEICAEIRER
continuing operations A,/ (E518) 9,787 (38,719) (27,412) (186,843) 19,297
Profit/(loss) for the year from B P ERFR
discontinued operations swAl/ (B518) 6,755 (9,154) 796 20,757 16,835
Profit/(loss) for the year FMEF (BE) 16,542 (47,873) (26,616) (166,086) 36,132
Attributable to: AT AT RELS
Equity shareholders of RRFREERR
the Company 15,053 (47,873) (26,498) (165,219) 36,132
Non-controlling interests FEER 1,489 = (118) (867) =
Profit/(loss) for the year Frafl/ (EE) 16,542 (47,873) (26,616) (166,086) 36,132
JERZREBER D E
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Summary Financial Information
MBERBE

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20165
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT FHIT FHIT FAT
(Re-presented) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E751) (E=il) (G=19) (Ei)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets ETBEE 343,688 512,355 535,058 511,183 739,957
Current assets mENEE 529,326 471,286 586,747 761,599 1,394,868
Current liabilities mEaE (32,721) (190,059) (284,654) (369,958) (1,041,845)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (27,451) (27,931) (5,844) (5,052) (259,047)
Net assets FEE 812,842 765,651 831,307 897,772 833,933
Attributable to: LA ARG
Equity shareholders of the RRAERRR
Company 812,842 765,651 831,307 898,324 833,558
Non-controlling interests FEER R - - = (552) 375
Total equity R 812,842 765,651 831,307 897,772 833,933
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